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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good

          3  morning, I am Council Member Madeline Provenzano,

          4  and I Chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings.

          5                 Today we are conducting a joint

          6  hearing with the Committee on Health to discuss

          7  issues related to the cellular telecommunications

          8  industry.

          9                 I would like to thank the Health

         10  Committee Chair, Chris Quinn, for agreeing to

         11  conduct this hearing together.  And, I thank the

         12  Health Committee members, as well as the members of

         13  the Housing and Buildings Committee for being

         14  present.

         15                 The two Committees will conduct an

         16  oversight entitled, "The Impact of the Proliferation

         17  of Cell Phone Towers and Base Stations in New York

         18  City", and will also hear testimony on three

         19  legislative items, which are as follows:

         20                 Intro. 149, a Local Law to amend the

         21  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         22  relation to maintenance of records regarding the

         23  issuance of alteration permits for cellular

         24  telephone antennas and equipment.

         25                 Reso. Number 76, Resolution calling
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          2  upon the appropriate committee on the Council to

          3  hold oversight hearings on the proliferation of

          4  cellular telephone bases, telephone towers, and base

          5  stations throughout New York City.

          6                 Reso. Number 6, we are actually doing

          7  that right now, so that Reso. Is kind of mute

          8  because we are conducting, these are the appropriate

          9  Committee's, and we are conducting the oversight

         10  hearings.

         11                 Reso. Number 88, it is a resolution

         12  calling on the Department of Health and Mental

         13  Hygiene to study the long- term effects of living

         14  and working near multiple antennas and base

         15  stations.

         16                 I would like to state that I am open

         17  to hearing testimony on this issue from all points

         18  of view, and I am not wedded to one position or the

         19  other.

         20                 The use of wireless telecommunication

         21  devices, particularly cellular telephones, with

         22  their associated equipment, has expanded enormously

         23  over the past several years.

         24                 Base stations, which are antennas

         25  attached to towers and other equipment, are
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          2  necessary for cellular telephone service providers

          3  to offer adequate service to the public within a

          4  given geographic area.

          5                 The technology through which cellular

          6  telephone service is provided requires a series of

          7  transmitters and signal boosters that are mounted on

          8  antennas, and are usually placed on the roofs or

          9  superstructures of buildings.

         10                 Some people are concerned that being

         11  in proximity to cellular telephone towers,

         12  particularly when such towers are clustered in a

         13  small area, may impose adverse health effects on

         14  those who reside or work in the buildings that

         15  accommodate them. While some are concerned that the

         16  towers are aesthetically displeasing.

         17                 I do want to briefly comment that

         18  Intro. Number 149 would require the Commissioner of

         19  Buildings to maintain a separate list of the permits

         20  issued for the erection or placement of antennas

         21  used for cellular telephone service, and any

         22  structure related to such service.

         23                 Currently, the Department of

         24  Buildings requires permits for the erection or

         25  placement of antennas but the permits required are
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          2  alteration permits, and there is not a separate

          3  category for cellular telephone technology.

          4                 At a minimum, the list required under

          5  Intro. Number 149 would contain the name, business

          6  address, and the telephone number of the applicant,

          7  date of application, date the permit was issued, the

          8  location for which the permit was issued, and the

          9  number of permits issued for this purpose at the

         10  same location, or within 250 feet of such location.

         11                 The Committee expects to hear

         12  testimony on this Bill, and the other items before

         13  us from representatives of the Administration,

         14  including the Department of Buildings, the

         15  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, cellular

         16  service providers, community groups and other

         17  interested persons.

         18                 I would like to acknowledge the

         19  members of the Housing and Buildings Committee that

         20  are present.  To my right we have Council Member

         21  James Oddo, Council Member Letitia James, to my left

         22  we have Council Member Tony Avella, who is the pink

         23  person next to you?  And, that is it for my

         24  Committee.

         25                 I will let my colleague introduce her

                                                            9

          1  HEALTH AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Committee members.

          3                 At this time, I would like to

          4  introduce the Chair of the Committee on Health.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

          6  The Committee members, I think there is some overlap

          7  but, the members of the Health Committee who are

          8  here are Council Member Jimmy Oddo, our Minority

          9  Leader from Staten Island, Kendall Stewart, Dr.

         10  Kendall Stewart from Brooklyn, Council Member Yvette

         11  Clarke, also from Brooklyn, and Council Member Helen

         12  Sears, up front, from Queens.

         13            And, as Chairperson Provenzano said today,

         14  we are having a joint hearing on issues relating to

         15  cell towers.  The reason why we are having a joint

         16  hearing is because Council Member Vallone, who we

         17  will hear from in a minute, introduced a number of

         18  different pieces of legislation, resolutions, et

         19  cetera, relating to this matter, some of which were

         20  referred to Housing, some of which were referred to

         21  Health, and we thought it made sense for the Council

         22  to look at this issue and these pieces of

         23  legislation more comprehensively, and holistically

         24  by having the two hearings together, as opposed to

         25  having two different ones on different days.
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          2                 We think this format will give the

          3  Council and the people in the industry, and people

          4  who have expressed concerns in the public and the

          5  Administration a better opportunity to comment

          6  overall about what they believe the impact of cell

          7  towers to be.            Certainly, there has been a

          8  growing number of cell towers put up in the City.

          9  People like me are probably part of the reason, I

         10  have yet another cell phone in my bag.  I did the

         11  industry when I was meeting them, "if you ever find

         12  out there are negative health effects, do not send

         13  me the report, it is too late, I do not want to

         14  know", relating to using them.  That train has left

         15  the station for me but, that said, certainly there

         16  have been more that have gone up in my own building.

         17    When they were put on the roof of my building,

         18  there were residents in our tenants association who

         19  had concerns that my office looked into, so, I think

         20  it is fitting to provide a forum today for the

         21  industry to give us their perspective, and also for

         22  a forum for people in the community who have

         23  concerns and questions about the proliferation of

         24  these cell towers to tell us what they think, and

         25  their reaction to this.
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          2                 This is really the first time the

          3  Council, in a Committee structure, has ventured into

          4  this issue, and I am certainly looking forward to

          5  hearing from all of the legislators, administration,

          6  concerned members of the public, and industry

          7  representatives about this issue, which is certainly

          8  not one that is going to go away anytime in the near

          9  future.

         10                 I do want to say that my staff, and

         11  the staff to the Housing Committee very aggressively

         12  reached out to try to get the FCC here, and

         13  ironically enough, it took many, many phone calls,

         14  many of which were not answered, to finally get what

         15  we believe was the FCC declining the opportunity to

         16  testify, perhaps they will show up, and I will have

         17  been wrong but we did attempt to get them here

         18  today, and I think it would have certainly added to

         19  today's discussion and debate, had they been here.

         20  I think it is unfortunate, and certainly probably

         21  adds to community concerns that they have not been

         22  more forthcoming in public settings like this.

         23                 That said, we are going to turn the

         24  mic over before we begin to hear testimony, to

         25  Council Member Vallone who is the author of the
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          2  legislation that Chairperson Provenzano gave us an

          3  overview on.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair.

          6                 The reason we are having this

          7  hearing, Chairperson Quinn, is because of you and

          8  Madeline Provenzano, because of the excellent Chairs

          9  we have of these two Committees, perhaps two of the

         10  most respected and knowledgeable Council members in

         11  the entire City Council.

         12                 This is not any easy hearing to have.

         13    It is hard enough to have a joint committee

         14  hearing and get it together as quickly as you two

         15  did but this is a complicated, complicated issue,

         16  many legal issues involving much work for both of

         17  you and your staffs, and two City agencies.

         18                 In addition, there are many interests

         19  involved here, some with a lot of money, and in

         20  fact, I did not know if this was a hearing or a

         21  lobbyist convention this morning.  The amount of

         22  money that is involved in this, and there are many

         23  interests involved, and I am not saying that it is

         24  wrong to have that but we have the landlords, we

         25  have the entire telecommunications industry. We have
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          2  the people of New York City here, so this is not an

          3  easy hearing to have, and I have to thank you

          4  immensely for the work that you have done in getting

          5  this together, both of you, and it is not an easy

          6  thing to do.  I have tried it in other Committees,

          7  it does not happen this often.  It does not happen

          8  this fast, so thank you very much.

          9                 Let me just quickly say as Public

         10  Safety Chair, I am well aware of the need for

         11  wireless technology.  In fact, I have been leading

         12  the fight for Albany to give us the money that they

         13  have been taking from us on our cell phone surcharge

         14  to eliminate dead spots, and to be able to find 911

         15  calls from cell phones.  So, I am well aware of

         16  that.

         17                 However, this huge expansion must be

         18  done responsibly.  Right now, the City of New York

         19  does not know how many cell phone towers exist.

         20  They do not know where they are located.  Right now

         21  the studies that we are relying on are old studies,

         22  and they are not sufficient, none of them studied

         23  the effects of multiple towers in a small area.

         24                 In addition, no one is protecting us.

         25  The FCC, who I have spoken to, and refuses to come
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          2  down today, have informed me that they have two

          3  inspectors that are in charge of finding out how

          4  much radiation exists in certain areas.  When I said

          5  two inspectors, "you mean for Astoria, do you mean

          6  for Queens, do you mean for New York City?"  No, for

          7  the entire northeastern seaboard of the United

          8  States, the FCC has two inspectors.  And, that is

          9  why this hearing is so necessary.  Too many people

         10  are waking up to find buildings like that, across

         11  the street from their homes, cell towers on every

         12  corner.  The public has no idea why they are there,

         13  or what they are doing, or what the health effects

         14  are, and unfortunately, neither does the City.  That

         15  is why we are having this hearing today.

         16                 I would like to thank people like

         17  Evie Hantzopoulos and John Campos, who first brought

         18  this to my attention when I had no idea what was

         19  going on, and people like Sullivan Genaros

         20  (phonetic) who has been leading the fight up in

         21  Albany.

         22                 So, again, let me thank the two of

         23  you, and I look forward also to the testimony today.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The first

         25  person who will be testifying today is New York
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          2  Assembly Member, Michael Gianaris, welcome.

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Thank you, and

          4  good morning.

          5                 First of all, let me thank the City

          6  Council and the Chair's of the relevant Committees

          7  for holding this important hearing today, and

          8  allowing me the opportunity to testify.

          9                 I would like just at the outset,

         10  before I read my testimony, to say to Council Member

         11  Quinn that were the FCC even to be here, I am not

         12  sure they would have had any valuable information to

         13  provide.  We actually, at a Town Hall Meeting I

         14  hosted, had one of the two northeastern inspectors

         15  attend, and unfortunately, the information he

         16  provided was sorely lacking in anything of value. I

         17  hope they get here but whether they are here or not,

         18  I am not sure it would have helped out your inquiry

         19  at all.

         20                 My colleagues in government, thank

         21  you for holding this hearing to address serious

         22  concerns regarding the increase in construction of

         23  cellular phone towers in our city.  New Yorkers from

         24  Astoria --

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:
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          2  Assemblyman, could I just ask you to identify

          3  yourself?  We all know who you are but the record

          4  does not.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIAS:  Oh, sure.

          6  New York State Assembly Member, Michael Gianaris

          7  from the 36th District, representing Astoria and

          8  Long Island City.

          9                 New Yorkers from Astoria to

         10  Whitestone to the Upper West Side have raised their

         11  voices to express concern over the widespread

         12  construction of wireless facilities on or near their

         13  homes.  I have likened the construction of cell

         14  towers in New York to the wild west, a world where

         15  no regulation or government oversight exists to

         16  provide a voice for the public interest.

         17                 Over the last several months, I have

         18  worked with concerned residents and elected

         19  officials on this growing problem, particularly with

         20  Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr., who has

         21  introduced measures in the City Council to address

         22  the issue.

         23                 While all concerned New Yorkers agree

         24  that we need to improve service and eliminate dead

         25  zones, there are conflicting views regarding the
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          2  process undertaken to improve wireless service. I

          3  stand firmly with residents throughout New York City

          4  who believe that the need to improve service cannot

          5  justify the reckless placement of wireless towers on

          6  buildings with little or no notice to the people who

          7  live there.

          8                 There is virtually no process in

          9  place to monitor the location of these sites, or to

         10  regulate their siting.  Right now, residents have

         11  very little information or input about wireless

         12  towers being placed over their homes, and throughout

         13  their neighborhoods, as you can see from the photos

         14  that have been put up behind me.  To make matters

         15  worse, New York City has surrendered its rights to

         16  oversee the industry be granting blanket waivers of

         17  permit requirements for the installation of these

         18  towers.

         19                 Imagine if you woke up one day living

         20  in that building, and suddenly found a dozen cell

         21  phone towers staring you in the face.  That is what

         22  has been going on throughout New York City right

         23  now, and some places in Manhattan where the high

         24  risers are taller, people wake up, literally, open

         25  their windows and see a tower staring them in the
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          2  face, as they are being put on the sides of

          3  buildings, as well.

          4                 That is why I have introduced

          5  legislation in the State Assembly, Co-sponsored in

          6  the State Senate by Senator Frank Padavan to address

          7  these issues by establishing a reasonable process to

          8  regulate the placement of wireless towers, and

          9  require adequate notification to residents.

         10                 I fully support the City Council's

         11  efforts to enact similar legislation that has been

         12  introduced by Council Member Vallone.

         13                 My legislation is designed to promote

         14  the responsible and efficient placement of wireless

         15  facilities in residential areas.  It has already

         16  garnered support from more than a dozen assembly

         17  members, and has a majority sponsor in the New York

         18  State Senate.

         19                 The state legislation would establish

         20  a four month moratorium on the construction of

         21  wireless facilities that will allow time for a new

         22  siting board to be established.  The board will, for

         23  the first time, provide residents with a forum to

         24  express themselves about an issue that directly

         25  affects them in their homes, as well as ensuring
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          2  that certain criteria are met before wireless towers

          3  are erected.

          4                 Specifically, the legislation would

          5  direct the State Department of Health to conduct a

          6  study regarding the long- term health effects of

          7  signals used by cell phone towers, require a showing

          8  of the need for a particular wireless facility,

          9  including a county map showing the location of other

         10  wireless facilities by that provider in the area,

         11  require written notice of the facility to property

         12  owners and residents within 500 feet of the proposed

         13  tower, as well as a public hearing on the specific

         14  proposal, and also require that facilities must

         15  conform to the aesthetics of the surrounding

         16  neighborhood.

         17                 It is extremely important that City

         18  and State officials work together on this matter.

         19                 I support Council Member Vallone's

         20  legislation and resolutions on this matter, which

         21  have been discussed already today.

         22                 Intro. Number 149 address a necessary

         23  and neglected function of city agencies; the

         24  maintenance of records.  It is disturbing to know

         25  that the City does not have a list of the total
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          2  number of permits and locations of wireless towers

          3  throughout the five boroughs.

          4                 Resolution Number 88 calls on the

          5  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene to study the

          6  long- term health effects on residents living and

          7  working so closely to these towers.  Existing

          8  studies often cited by the industry were conducted

          9  decades ago, at a time when the average persons

         10  phone was wired through a plug in their wall.  The

         11  concept of wireless cellular communication devises

         12  was very different then, than it is today.

         13                 As I mentioned, I am also calling on

         14  the State Department of Health to conduct a

         15  statewide study of long- term health effects but New

         16  York City's unique dynamics, such as its dense

         17  population and taller buildings, warrant a separate

         18  study focusing, particularly on characteristics that

         19  exist in the City.

         20                 In conclusion, the proliferation of

         21  wireless towers throughout New York City is

         22  undoubtedly filling a need but doing so with

         23  reckless abandon, and no regard for the concerns of

         24  local residents or the aesthetics of surrounding

         25  communities.
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          2                 A sensible and fair process, that

          3  will allow needed towers to be constructed, while

          4  preventing the abuse of certain New Yorkers, is not

          5  only the right thing to do, it is necessary.

          6                 I thank you for your attention to

          7  this important public matter, and I wish you well as

          8  you deliberate on how to deal with this ongoing

          9  problem.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         12  for your testimony.

         13                 I just have one question.  It is

         14  interesting to hear from you what the state is doing

         15  but do you actually have the jurisdiction to do what

         16  you are trying to do, or are there some kind of

         17  federal mandates that would override?

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  That is a good

         19  question on two fronts.

         20                 The federal government has precluded

         21  states from acting to counter the health effects of

         22  wireless communications.           However, states

         23  do have the ability, on many localities throughout

         24  the country have enacted measures that regulate the

         25  placement and siting them, either for aesthetic
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          2  purposes or as a land use matter, so we certainly

          3  have jurisdiction in that regard.  We do, for the

          4  legislation I specifically spoke about, we do

          5  requite "Home Rule" Message from yourselves, which

          6  we have requested, so, I assume this hearing is part

          7  of the process of determining whether that will be

          8  forthcoming.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do you have

         10  any idea, this must be an issue all over the

         11  country, of course, it is a bigger problem in New

         12  York, I am sure but, how other states are handling

         13  this?  Or have they handled it better than we have?

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Well, we have

         15  not handled it at all to this point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Right.

         17                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  So, to the

         18  extent that they have handled it at all, they have

         19  handled it better than we have done.

         20                 I have tried to pull, what I thought,

         21  were the best aspects of what other localities have

         22  done into the state legislation that I talked about,

         23  so there are other places where they do require

         24  local notice, where they do have a hearing process,

         25  where essentially, residents would have the
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          2  opportunity, we have a number of people from my

          3  district that you will be hearing from later today,

          4  who literally woke up and saw a cell towers sitting

          5  over their heads.

          6                 I mean, at a minimum, we should give

          7  people the opportunity to, if they do not want to

          8  live in a building that has a cell tower, to have an

          9  adequate notice, so they can find another place to

         10  live.  I mean, I do not even want to displace

         11  people, they should not have to go to that measure

         12  but, at a minimum, we should give them notice, and

         13  give them an opportunity to be heard so that, I

         14  think all to often, we get in a situation where it

         15  is an easy money maker for someone who owns a

         16  building, and if that person does not live there,

         17  there is no concern about what the consequences will

         18  be either aesthetically, or for the heath of the

         19  people living in the building.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So, all they

         21  have to do, I mean, they have to get permission of

         22  whoever owns the building, whether it be a high rise

         23  or what have you?  But, the tenants in that building

         24  do not have to--.

         25                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Exactly right.
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          2    Right now, it is just a contractual matter.  If a

          3  wireless company enters into a contract with the

          4  owner of a building, it is done.  An often, these

          5  are very, very lucrative contracts.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Assembly

          8  Member, what are some of the other counties that you

          9  referenced, and if your office maybe could forward

         10  to our staff just whatever they have done there,

         11  just so we can have it all as part of our record to

         12  cross reference?

         13                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  I will be

         14  happy to provide you with that information.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Great, thank

         16  you very much, and thank you for coming and

         17  testifying today.

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Thank you.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think

         20  Council member Sears, who you may have met once or

         21  twice has a question for you.  I think she is going

         22  to be very, very tough.  I found that when her

         23  Queens colleagues are here she can be vicious.

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  That has been

         25  my experience so far with her.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I am easy.  I

          3  thank you, Madam Chair.

          4                      For clarification because there

          5  is a great deal of confusion for this.  Right now,

          6  it seems like its a natural free for- all without

          7  any controls, without very much of anything.

          8                 On the three levels of government,

          9  can you prioritize what level, where it has to

         10  start, where the initiation has to take place, and I

         11  recognize that having controls in communications is

         12  a very difficult thing but this encompasses such an

         13  environmental issue.  Do we start with the local?

         14  Do we start with the state?  Do we start with the

         15  federal government?  Because I have found that

         16  sometimes to zero in on what is the first step in a

         17  legislative process begins to unfold and make things

         18  a little bit easier.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  That is a good

         20  question.  I think the answer lies with all of you

         21  who are sitting before me. Really it is a local

         22  matter before anything else, even the state

         23  legislation I have introduced is going to require a

         24  Home Rule Message from all of you, and ultimately,

         25  when one is concerned about what effects a
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          2  community, it is those that represent those

          3  communities that have that interest in mind, first

          4  and foremost, to where that interest will be

          5  represented.

          6                 So, the FCC and the federal

          7  government have a different mandate than making sure

          8  that the folks who are sitting here in this audience

          9  today are protected in their homes.  That comes

         10  more, I think, from local legislators.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right, so

         12  if the Council was to send this Home Rule to the

         13  state, should they simultaneously send something to

         14  their Congressman that would be reviewed at that

         15  level, as well?

         16                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  I certainly do

         17  not think it would hurt.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And that would

         19  be a process, right?

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  One of the

         22  things that has been coming to my office is that

         23  with one of the companies, is that they install

         24  their equipment on the roof and on the buildings,

         25  and then the buildings are getting the violations
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          2  for what has been the responsibility of those towers

          3  coming in, and it has been a nightmare.

          4                 The building has had to sue privately

          5  the communications company, in order to repair them,

          6  which they do not do.  I have one instance where the

          7  building had to spend $3,000 to deal with the

          8  violations of that communications company.  So, I

          9  just bring that to your attention because this is

         10  such a myriad of complexities that we have to start

         11  peeling away the layers so there can be something

         12  reasonable and rational that at least starts the

         13  process.

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  I completely

         15  agree, and that should serve as a cautionary note to

         16  building owners who are rushing to get into these

         17  contracts right now, that they may well be on the

         18  hook for things like you described.  I mean, the

         19  legislation I have in the state, I should also

         20  mention, does require that if a tower is no longer

         21  in use or is in disrepair, that the wireless company

         22  will be required to move it from the building.  So

         23  that would partially address that concern,

         24  specifically.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right,
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          2  thank you very much.

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          6  Member Oddo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 Assemblyman, welcome, and thank you

         10  for the good work you are doing on this issue, and

         11  the good work that you do in general.

         12                 I just have one quick question.  Can

         13  you just explain to me exactly what you mean, in the

         14  middle paragraph, on the first page, "to make

         15  matters worse New York City has surrendered its

         16  rights to oversee the industry by granting blanket

         17  waivers of permit requirements"?

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  As I started

         19  looking into this, and finding out what permits are

         20  required, as you know you approve all sorts of

         21  permits in the City for anything from street cafes

         22  to any alterations to a building, it was brought to

         23  my attention, and I think you have Buildings

         24  Department folks here who could probably speak more

         25  specifically to it, that the Buildings Department
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          2  has essentially required, surrendered oversight over

          3  any permits required for cell towers.  In the sense

          4  that all they require is a filing of a piece of

          5  paper, it goes in a file somewhere, and end of

          6  story, you go put up your tower.

          7                 My information is that there was some

          8  decision made that because we wanted theses cell

          9  towers to go up as quickly as possible to fill the

         10  need that exists, that we wanted to facilitate the

         11  process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:   Do you think

         13  that, currently, as the law is written right now,

         14  they have certain powers that they are not

         15  exercising, or we need to articulate and clarify

         16  those powers?

         17                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  I do believe

         18  that they have powers related to approving

         19  alterations to a building that they are not

         20  enforcing to their full extent.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay, all

         22  right, thank you.

         23                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have been

         25  joined by Council Member Melinda Katz, and
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          2  Councilwoman Letitia James has a question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Assemblyman

          4  Gianaris, was there a similar study done on Long

          5  Island?  I recognize that on Long Island there was

          6  some cancer clusters, and at some point in time, was

          7  there a review and/or study with regards to the

          8  relationship between towers and cancer clusters?

          9                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  I am not

         10  certain if there were ever any studies specifically

         11  with regard to cell phone towers on Long Island.

         12                 All the studies that I have seen on

         13  this have been pretty dated, and when you go back

         14  that far, you are talking about a point where cell

         15  phones were not used as often as they are today. So,

         16  it is a different environment.  I am not sure if

         17  there was or not, is the short answer to your

         18  question but if there had been, there had not been

         19  any done recently.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, and

         21  there is not any way to determine how many towers

         22  are located in the City of New York, is that

         23  correct?

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  We have been

         25  completely been unable to acquire that information.
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          2  I do not believe that the City maintains its records

          3  in such a way that they can provide a list of that

          4  information.  And, I think that is one of the things

          5  Council Member Vallone is dealing with in his

          6  resolution.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And, in your

          8  bill in Albany, does it speak to environmental

          9  justice issues with regards to whether or not towers

         10  are disproportionately located in minority

         11  communities?

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Actually, I do

         13  not believe it does, but that is a very good point,

         14  and it is an issue I have been very involved with in

         15  terms of power plant siting.  I have been very

         16  concerned about that, so, I am going to take that

         17  under advisement with me and include that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  My last

         19  question is, have there been, I know there is some

         20  anecdotal evidence, but, has there been any

         21  scientific evidence linking towers to any health

         22  concerns?

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  There have

         24  been studies performed in Europe that have drawn a

         25  link.  There have been scientists who have worked on
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          2  studies for the industry who have, curiously,

          3  resigned and refused to talk about their work any

          4  longer, and I think some of the people who will be

          5  testifying later will speak specifically to that.

          6  But, there is more than just anecdotal evidence that

          7  there is some cause for concern.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         10  Member Vallone.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

         12  I would just like to clarify the purpose of this

         13  hearing, as Assemblyman Gianaris said, is to get

         14  some information so that we can then determine what,

         15  if any, legislation the City Council should pass,

         16  and that legislation may wind up mirroring what

         17  Assemblyman Gianaris is doing on the state level.

         18                 For example, he has a bill which

         19  would force the companies to prove a need, before

         20  they go into a certain location.             For

         21  example, if the company is putting towers up across

         22  the street from a school because they get cheaper

         23  rent there, that would not be a need, but if it is a

         24  dead spot there, then that perhaps would be.  So,

         25  that is the type of legislation that we will be
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          2  considering, and I will be introducing, perhaps,

          3  with co- sponsors after this hearing, and that is

          4  why this hearing is important, to get some

          5  knowledge, so we can determine what rights we have,

          6  and what laws, if any, need to be introduced.

          7                 So, thank you for your help in that,

          8  Assemblyman Gianaris.

          9                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Any more

         11  questions?  No?

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 ASSEMBLYMAN GIANARIS:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Phyllis

         15  Arnold, General Counsel for the Department of

         16  Buildings, and Jessica Leighton, Assistant

         17  Commissioner for the Department of Health and Mental

         18  Health.

         19                 Phyllis, do you want to start?

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         21                 Good morning, Chairpersons Provenzano

         22  and Quinn, and members of the Committees on Housing,

         23  Buildings, and Health.

         24                 My name is Phyllis Arnold, and I am

         25  General Counsel to the City's Department of
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          2  Buildings.

          3                 I appear today to testify concerning

          4  Intro. 149, regarding record- keeping requirements

          5  for permits issued by the Department for cellular

          6  antenna.

          7                 I am joined by representatives of the

          8  Health Department, Ann Duit (phonetic) who will

          9  either testify or answer questions respectively.

         10                 Do you want to introduce yourself who

         11  is sitting at the table?

         12                 MR. CONJEMI:  Augustino Conjemi,

         13  General Counsel and Deputy Commissioner at DOITT.

         14                 MS. LEIGHTON:  Dr. Jessica Leighton,

         15  Assistant Commissioner for the Department of Health

         16  and Mental Hygiene.

         17                 MS. ARNOLD:  The bill before you

         18  would require the Department to keep a list of

         19  alteration permits issued for the installation of

         20  cellular antenna used to provide cellular or similar

         21  service related structures.

         22                 Currently, applications filed for

         23  such work are not separately tracked as a work type,

         24  although they are required to be filed.  Based on an

         25  estimate, and I emphasize the word estimate, derived
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          2  from a search of filings using certain key words,

          3  last year almost 600 such jobs were filed with the

          4  Department of Buildings.

          5                 The Department is certainly willing

          6  to comply with the provisions outlined in Intro.

          7  149, however, we seek clarification that they apply

          8  only to applications filed after the bill's

          9  effective date.  Moreover, because of the

         10  operational needs associated with separately

         11  tracking these jobs, and putting those mechanisms in

         12  place, we are going to need a period beyond 30 days,

         13  probably closer to 90 days in which to implement

         14  Intro. 149's provisions.

         15                 Finally, we do have some technical

         16  suggestions that we would be happy to address with

         17  you and your staffs separately with you.

         18                 I do thank you, and I invite you to

         19  ask whatever questions you would like.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Why don't

         21  you give your testimony, and then we will take

         22  questions to whoever.

         23            MS. LEIGHTON:  Good morning, Chairpersons

         24  Provenzano and Quinn, and members of the Committees

         25  on Housing and Buildings, as well as, Health.
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          2                 I am Dr. Jessica Leighton, Assistant

          3  Commissioner of the Department of Health and Metal

          4  Hygiene's Bureau of Environmental Disease

          5  Prevention.

          6                 I appreciate the opportunity to speak

          7  to the health concerns that have been raised about

          8  the installation of cell phone antennas, and base

          9  stations on rooftops throughout New York City.

         10                 As you may know, the Department has

         11  no regulatory authority in this area.  The FCC rules

         12  specifically preclude most state and local

         13  regulation of cell phone antenna and towers.

         14                 In particular, Section 704 of the

         15  Telecommunications Act of 1996 states that, "No

         16  state or local government or instrumentality thereof

         17  may regulate the placement, construction, and

         18  modification of personal wireless service facilities

         19  on the basis of the environmental effects of radio

         20  frequency emissions to the extent that such

         21  facilities comply with the Commissions' regulations

         22  concerning such emissions".

         23                 Over the years, the Health Department

         24  has been reviewing the literature on this issue, and

         25  I would like to take this opportunity to briefly
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          2  summarize, and present a summary of the relevant

          3  scientific literature about the hazards of cell

          4  phone antenna.

          5                 First, I would like to clarify what

          6  is meant by radio frequencies, then I would like to

          7  review what has been learned from the studies that

          8  have been conducted on the health effects of radio

          9  frequencies.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:

         11  Commissioner, before you go any further, we have a

         12  very pressing question from the Committee.

         13                 MS. LEIGHTON:  Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  What is the

         15  plural of antenna?

         16                 MS. LEIGHTON:  I actually do not

         17  know, antennae, I think.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Antennae, we

         19  might impose as a budget relief measure, anybody who

         20  does not get it right throughout the testimony we

         21  will be collecting a quarter later and that will be

         22  split between DOB and DOH.

         23                 MS. LEIGHTON:  I always have that

         24  problem with the word`data', as well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Exactly
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          2  right.

          3                 MS. LEIGHTON:  Data or plural.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I get to say

          5   `stadi-i' (phonetic) a lot now in my life.

          6                 Sorry, go ahead.

          7                 MS. LEIGHTON:  Radio frequencies are

          8  one type of electromagnetic radiation.  Radiation

          9  exists along a spectrum that varies from low to

         10  higher frequencies, and you should have an extra

         11  sheet with your testimony, did you all get this?

         12  And, it is also up here.

         13                 As the frequency gets higher, energy

         14  increases, so if you go to the right on this chart,

         15  you are getting an increase in energy.  And, as you

         16  can see on the bottom, radio waves fall in the lower

         17  half of the radiation spectrum.  The next category

         18  on the spectrum includes microwaves, then infrared,

         19  visible light, and ultraviolet light.  At the higher

         20  end of the spectrum is ionizing radiation, and this

         21  includes X- Rays, gamma rays, and others. Ionizing

         22  radiation, such as X- Rays, can create changes in

         23  human tissue and because of this, many of you know,

         24  ionizing radiation is thus associated with cancers.

         25                 The type of electromagnetic radiation
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          2  that is emitted by cell phone antennae, is in the

          3  lower, middle part of the spectrum, and falls

          4  between the high end of radio frequencies and the

          5  low end of microwave radiation.  You can see where

          6  the cell phones are in the top, in red.

          7                 Cell phones do not emit ionizing

          8  radiation.  The base stations or cell phone rooftop

          9  antennas do not emit ionizing radiation either.  The

         10  amount of radiation emitted by radio frequencies is

         11  measured in something we call watts.  And, emissions

         12  from cell phone towers or antennae are usually low

         13  enough so that we measure them in micro- watts,

         14  rather than watts per centimeter square.

         15                 Cell phone base stations, typically,

         16  emit very

         17  small amounts of energy, orders of magnitude less

         18  than television and radio towers.

         19                 Radio emissions are difficult to

         20  measure, and standards for their measurement are new

         21  and still evolving. Emissions are not the same as

         22  exposure, and this is a concept that we talk a lot

         23  about in environmental health.  Emissions is what

         24  comes out of the source.  Exposure is what happens

         25  when emissions are absorbed by people.  Exposure is
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          2  measured in watts per kilogram of body weight, or

          3  animal weight.

          4                 A single antenna can result in very

          5  different levels of exposure.  Yet, a Canadian

          6  review reports that "without exception, the exposure

          7  on the ground in the vicinity of a single wireless

          8  base station antenna/antennae have been found to be

          9  very low".  The exposure also varies depending on

         10  how far from an antenna someone is.  Exposure falls

         11  off dramatically with distance from the maximum

         12  point of antenna emissions.  For every doubling of

         13  distance from an antenna, exposure falls off

         14  exponentially.  That is why even though cell phone

         15  handsets emit very small wattages, handset exposures

         16  may be far greater from the handset than from a

         17  nearby cell phone base station that emits far

         18  greater wattage.

         19                 Now we are going on to exposure,

         20  rather than emissions.  Exposure is very difficult

         21  to measure and estimate. Exposure does not

         22  necessarily lead to any adverse health affects. For

         23  an exposure to affect someone's health, there must

         24  be a mechanism by which the exposure, in this case

         25  the radio frequency radiation, can influence the
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          2  body.

          3                 We have looked at the human

          4  epidemiology, animal study, and toxicologic

          5  literature for the health effects that have been

          6  explored and evaluated for their association with

          7  radio and microwave radiation.  Widespread cell

          8  phone use is only a decade or so old, and studies on

          9  health effects specific to base station emissions

         10  have not yet been published.

         11                 Nonetheless, many studies have been

         12  conducted that assess risks from radio frequency

         13  emissions.  And, just to note, you can see that

         14  radio frequencies incorporate a number things, AM

         15  radios, FM radios, and T.V.'s.

         16                 Current epidemiological and clinical

         17  evidence does not support findings of an association

         18  between radio frequencies and adverse health effects

         19  such as cancer, reproductive effects, neurological

         20  effects or others.  There are a number of criteria

         21  that epidemiologists use to evaluate epidemiologic

         22  research to determine whether there is a causal

         23  association between an exposure and a disease.

         24                 One criterion that we use is whether

         25  a relationship is consistently found among studies
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          2  conducted on different populations, over different

          3  times, and using different study designs.

          4                 Another criterion is how strong a

          5  relationship is. In a review of an article that we

          6  looked at, "Critical Review of Epidemiologic Studies

          7  of Radio Frequency Exposure and Human Cancers",

          8  which was published in the well recognized

          9  Environmental Health Perspectives Journal, it was

         10  stated that "The epidemiologic evidence falls short

         11  of the strength and consistency of evidence that is

         12  required to come to a reasonable conclusion that

         13  radio frequency emissions are a likely cause of one

         14  or more types of human cancer.  The evidence is weak

         15  in regard to its inconsistency, the design of the

         16  studies, the lack of detail on the actual exposures,

         17  and the limitations of their studies in their

         18  ability to deal with other likely relevant factors.

         19  In some studies there may be biases in the data

         20  used, as well".

         21                 Current epidemiologic evidence also

         22  does not support an association between exposure to

         23  radio frequencies and risk of reproductive problems,

         24  congenital anomalies or damage to the heart, blood,

         25  immune or endocrine systems.  Radio frequencies have

                                                            43

          1  HEALTH AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  also not been found to be associated with

          3  neurological effects such as epilepsy, headache, or

          4  suicide.  Where associations, in some studies, have

          5  been found, they are small and generally not

          6  statistically significant, and generally involve

          7  small numbers of cases.

          8                 If associations do exist between

          9  radio frequency and health effects, they are most

         10  certainly too small to be detected, and this has

         11  ramifications on the ability to do a study well, and

         12  the health effects would most likely be rare, if

         13  they exist at all.

         14                 The principal means by which cell

         15  phone radio frequencies are understood to affect

         16  cells in animals is through the heating of tissues.

         17  Current FCC regulations are intended to protect

         18  against these effects by limiting the power of

         19  individual and clustered antennae installations.

         20  The emissions standards developed by the FCC were

         21  based on thousands of published studies on possible

         22  health effects.  FCC built in a substantial safety

         23  factor to the limits to ensure that no biologic

         24  tissues are being heated.  Because of the low field

         25  strengths associated with public exposure to radio
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          2  frequency fields from wireless telecommunications

          3  base station antennae, adverse health effects are

          4  not likely to occur.

          5                 Let me also say a word about the need

          6  for additional research in this area.  As I said,

          7  the results of the currently available clinical and

          8  epidemiological studies do not suggest adverse

          9  health effects related to radio frequency exposure

         10  and those that do show effects are generally have

         11  not been proven to be more than coincidence and are

         12  not consistent in terms of the types and duration of

         13  exposure, or the health outcomes.  The preponderance

         14  of evidence, therefore, suggests that health effects

         15  are unlikely to occur to cell phone users or to

         16  people who live or work in the vicinity of cell

         17  phone base stations.

         18                 Yet, due to the designs of the

         19  published studies, the difficulty and expense of

         20  conducting other studies, and the inherent

         21  limitations of epidemiology to detect very small

         22  effects, it is fair to say that some questions have

         23  not been conclusively answered.

         24                 While more study may be warranted, it

         25  would take an enormous amount of time, money and
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          2  expertise that is only now being developed to

          3  adequately understand measuring exposures and health

          4  effects.  Entirely different training, expertise and

          5  professions are required to evaluate emissions,

          6  exposures and health outcomes, and personnel who

          7  adhere to what few standards exist in these areas

          8  are still in short supply and expensive.

          9                 Better studies are based in very

         10  large populations, followed for many years in the

         11  future, the kinds of studies that have been

         12  conducted mostly in Scandinavian countries, where

         13  populations are less mobile, and a centralized

         14  health system provides comprehensive retrospective,

         15  and prospective health information on individuals

         16  studied.  Short- term health studies conducted

         17  locally are not likely to shed meaningful light on

         18  these issues.

         19                 Neither the Department of Health and

         20  Mental Hygiene nor the City currently regulates the

         21  use of cell phones, or emissions from cell phone

         22  base stations.  Because evidence suggests that the

         23  regulations currently limit emissions to safe levels

         24  insuring that companies installing these antennae

         25  comply with FCC regulations is a potentially
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          2  appropriate area of focus.

          3                 I would like to thank you for your

          4  interest, and I will try, as will my colleagues, to

          5  answer any questions that you may have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          7                 I have a question for Phyllis.  You

          8  stated that last year almost 600 jobs were filed for

          9  these antennae.  So my question would be, since the

         10  possibility is that we are anticipating more and

         11  more, have you thought about if it would require any

         12  additional staff or there would be any fiscal impact

         13  on the agency to comply with this legislation, if it

         14  were enacted?

         15                 MS. ARNOLD:  We have certainly

         16  thought about it, and I think it would depend on how

         17  we implement, and whether we go forward with

         18  operational changes or information technology

         19  changes. I would imagine the impact is going to be

         20  relatively minor.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

         22  you.

         23                 I also have a question for Mr.

         24  Conjemi.

         25                 As we are looking at pictures of
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          2  these things, and I know that is not a very good

          3  word but, I cannot help but think, and I will also

          4  pose this question to some of our other folks that

          5  come up, you know you walk around Europe, you walk

          6  around Asia, and their cell phone technology

          7  reception, what have you, is far superior to what we

          8  have in this country.  And, you do not see these

          9  kinds of things.  Why is it that we have to have

         10  this, and you may not know the answer to this one,

         11  why is it we have to have it here?  I would think

         12  there has to be a better way.

         13                 MR. CONJEMI:  I am not familiar with,

         14  I am familiar that the cell technology in Europe

         15  does seem to be advanced.  New York is a unique

         16  animal, unlike, even the rest of the country.  We

         17  are not a city the has cell towers.  These are often

         18  called cell towers, there actually just base

         19  stations.  So, we do not have these Eiffel Tower

         20  looking towers.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  As they

         22  would in other countries?

         23                 MR. CONJEMI:  As they have in other

         24  countries.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. CONJEMI:  As they have in rural

          3  areas of this country.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, that

          5  is a pretty good answer.

          6                 Council Member Quinn.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I have a

          8  question for Commissioner Leighton.

          9                 In your testimony, you mentioned

         10  that, in

         11  Paragraph 2, "that no state or local government may

         12  regulate the placement or construction of personal

         13  wireless service facilities on the basis of

         14  environmental effects to the extent that such

         15  facilities comply with the Commissions regulations

         16  concerning such emissions".  I mean that obviously

         17  seems very clear about who has jurisdiction, except,

         18  it raises a question for me.  How do we know, or

         19  does the Department have information provided to you

         20  all, or any part of the Administration, from the

         21  FCC, that lets us know that these cell towers are

         22  actually in compliance with the Commission's

         23  regulations concerning such emissions, and if you

         24  do, or even if you do not, how frequently does the

         25  FCC do inspections or checks or monitoring,
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          2  particularly in light of the fact that, according to

          3  the author of the legislation, they only have two

          4  people for the northeast?

          5                 MS. LEIGHTON:  We have not been, had

          6  much contact, although I think in the past, we have

          7  with the FCC regarding this. If you are asking

          8  whether they did an environmental impact statement,

          9  or something like that, I frankly do not know.  We

         10  could look into that.

         11                 Some of my colleagues may have more

         12  information than I.

         13                 MR. CONJEMI:  I would make a

         14  suggestion for the Council members.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Could you

         16  move the mic a little closer, I am sorry.

         17                 MR. CONJEMI:  Sure, sorry about that.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That is okay.

         19                 MR. CONJEMI:  The FCC has actually

         20  issued a local governments' guide to transmitting

         21  antenna RF emissions safety rules, procedures, and

         22  practical guidance, in which they summarize some of

         23  the reasons perhaps in which inspections are not

         24  always done.  They have broken down different types

         25  of RF emission facilities, and created what they
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          2  call "Categorical Exclusions", and because they have

          3  found certain types of antennae emit, the emissions

          4  and the exposure present such a small risk, that in

          5  certain instances, they do not and they do not

          6  recommend that local governments conduct an actual

          7  inspection because the probability of finding a

          8  violation of this standard is infinitesimal.  So,

          9  that may actually, just looking at the number of

         10  inspections does not really answer the question

         11  because depending on the type of installation, they

         12  are basing it on the probability of finding.  They

         13  also certify the equipment that the cell companies

         14  use, and the cell companies generally use FCC

         15  compliant equipment if they are doing that.  If they

         16  are doing that then there will not be violations of

         17  the FCC guidelines.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Is there some

         19  way that somebody in the City knows before they go

         20  up, whether they are using the FCC approved

         21  equipment?

         22                 MR. CONJEMI:  That is not part of the

         23  permanent process, so, we do not know that.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Do you have

         25  to, if you are a company that wants to put these up,
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          2  do you have to check with the FCC before you can put

          3  them up, to make sure you have that FCC approved

          4  equipment?

          5                 MR. CONJEMI:  It depends on the

          6  equipment.  With base stations, generally, I think

          7  that is going to fall into the, there is a certain

          8  category in this guide called PCS Equipment, where

          9  there will be categorically excluded.  As long as

         10  they are using the appropriate equipment.  You may

         11  want to ask that question to the carriers, as well.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, and if

         13  you could provide us with that information that you

         14  mentioned, that would be great, and you know, as I

         15  said, we found it challenging to make contact with

         16  the FCC.  So, if there are other people there that

         17  you work with more frequently, who would be more

         18  forthcoming in helping us get information to better

         19  understand this, we would love to get those names

         20  and contacts.

         21                 Just one last question.  It says that

         22  you cannot regulate, the part of the Act you cited,

         23  says we cannot regulate placement, construction, et

         24  cetera, et cetera, do you know whether there is any

         25  prohibition if this was to be looked at from a Land
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          2  Use perspective, as opposed to an environmental

          3  health perspective?

          4                 MR. CONJEMI:  There is not a

          5  prohibition.  In fact, it is left up to local

          6  jurisdictions.  But, what they are mindful of is, in

          7  many cases, in local jurisdictions, essentially

          8  because they were concerned with the health impacts,

          9  they are going to look at whether or not that is a

         10  rouse.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         12                 MR. CONJEMI:  And so, moratoriums,

         13  and things like that have been stuck down across the

         14  country.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I hear you.

         16  Right, so if you are going to try to "back- door"

         17  it, they are pretty hip to that.

         18                 MR. CONJEMI:  Yes.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, great,

         20  thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I have just

         22  one other question which is kind of silly, but, it

         23  is for Augie, now that we know each other better.

         24                 If we were back, where all we had

         25  was`Ma Bell', I guess we would not be having this
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          2  problem because we would not need, I mean, isn't

          3  what is happening now is that each carrier needs

          4  their own stuff going up?  I mean if everyone was

          5  together on this, we would not need as many of these

          6  kinds of things?

          7                 MR. CONJEMI:  That is true.  Many of

          8  the carriers use different technologies, and because

          9  they use different technologies, the antennas that

         10  they use would not be able to support the

         11  competition that we have.

         12                 Now, there are essentially six major

         13  carriers that operate in New York, and two of the

         14  carriers use the same system in New York City, so

         15  there are five different build- outs of equipment to

         16  support their customers.

         17                 If there were just one company,

         18  capacity would be an issue for that company, so that

         19  company would have to build more for capacity but

         20  they would not necessarily geographically have to be

         21  located in as many locations as the five companies

         22  that are located here today.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  As we look

         24  at a building like that, that has what, at least

         25  eight, you probably cannot answer this question but,
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          2  would you just identify yourself for the record?

          3                 MR. CONJEMI:  Okay, Augustino

          4  Conjemi, General Counsel and Deputy Commissioner at

          5  the Department of Information Technology, and

          6  Telecommunications.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8                 Would each one of those represent a

          9  different carrier?

         10                 MR. CONJEMI:  I do not believe so.  I

         11  believe that that is probably a single carrier.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, okay,

         13  thank you.  So much for monopolies, maybe we should

         14  bring them back, but, anyway.           Does anybody

         15  else have question?

         16                 Councilwoman Katz.  And, we have also

         17  been joined by Councilwomen Diana Reyna.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you very

         19  much, and I want to thank Councilman Vallone, who is

         20  next on the list but allowed me to go so I can make

         21  a meeting in Queens.

         22                 I have a question I am not sure you

         23  can answer it, but I would like to know if you have

         24  heard about it through the rumor mill that we all

         25  have.
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          2                 From what I hear, from some of the

          3  workers that actually work on the lines, if there

          4  are several carriers as you were just talking about

          5  of these stations, is that what you call them, or

          6  lines, or companies, or whatever they are, I am

          7  being told that if it is not all theirs, and they

          8  cannot shut down all the lines that are there, that

          9  they have difficulties getting workers to actually

         10  work on those lines.  And, I am wondering because,

         11  obviously, then they are up there, they are only

         12  able to shut off their power source, they are not

         13  able to shut off everyone else's power source, and

         14  that is the rumor mill that I am hearing, and I am

         15  wondering if you have heard anything about it?  And,

         16  if not, we will ask the unions or whoever, I do not

         17  know if they are testifying, that are going to come

         18  up.

         19                 MR. CONJEMI:  I have not heard

         20  anything about that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So, as the

         22  Doctor in the Department of Health, if you knew

         23  someone who was going up on these areas, and working

         24  on these lines, and they could not shut down all the

         25  lines, so they would have to really work next to
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          2  lines that were alive, do you believe that would be

          3  problematic?

          4                 MS. LEIGHTON:  My understanding, from

          5  what I have looked at in the literature, and I think

          6  there is probably a lot more to look at.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I cannot hear

          8  you.

          9                 MS. LEIGHTON:  Sorry, my

         10  understanding from our review of the literature is

         11  that the emissions are pretty low, and workers are,

         12  the standards that were used were built to protect

         13  workers, as well.

         14                 Now, if someone is constantly next to

         15  an emissions source, I think, I do not know if I

         16  have exactly the information but, it is probably

         17  something that we need to look it, but my

         18  understanding that even for workers working on

         19  sources, their risk is relatively low, so, I am not

         20  being definitive but that is my understanding.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I think, I do

         22  not know how to go about this, and I apologize,

         23  Madam Chair, but I think that a lot of the testimony

         24  says that while there are health risks but they are

         25  very small, and we are not really sure what they
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          2  are.  I think that one of the problems is, is that

          3  as we are here discussing where these towers are

          4  going, they are proliferating all around our

          5  districts, and in my district, the majority of homes

          6  are apartment buildings.  So, it is a very large

          7  concern.  So, when I heard that there are workers

          8  that somehow are not happy about going up and

          9  working on these lines, while there is other

         10  emissions happening from other companies that they

         11  cannot control, it really did worry me.

         12                 I think we need to know that

         13  information, and I think that that is a fair

         14  request, and something the City should really look

         15  at.  But, in the meantime, I think that as we are

         16  sitting here talking about it, they keep going up.

         17                 MS. LEIGHTON:  You know, just to

         18  address the issue of what the City can look at,

         19  there have been lots and lots of studies, and these

         20  studies take a long time to do, involve expertise in

         21  emissions, such as physicists, involves expertise in

         22  exposures.  It involves expertise in health effects,

         23  and various health effects.  A study like this

         24  because, so far, the results, there have not been

         25  many findings of adverse health outcomes, which
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          2  means that it is probably, if you something like

          3  tobacco and lung cancer, the strength of an

          4  association, you can get 10 times, 40 times chance

          5  greater of having a health effect if you smoke.

          6  But, when you are down to risks that are about one-

          7  point, three- fold, one- point, five- fold, it is

          8  hard to determine if that is due to a certain cause

          9  or to another cause.

         10                 To do such a study would be very

         11  complex, and just in terms of the Health Department,

         12  we are not a research facility, we are a public

         13  health agency.  So, it is a very complex study that

         14  you are talking about, and others have tried to do

         15  various studies and come up with fairly inconsistent

         16  results across different studies.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Councilman

         19  Oddo.  Oh, I am sorry.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 Councilman Vallone, just so you know.

         23                 First of all, Dr. Leighton, the

         24  plural of, you can say antennas because the plural

         25  is either antennas or antennae, and I believe my
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          2  daughter learned that on the third grade exam last

          3  week.  So, that is how I got it.  She did not have

          4  the question before hand.  I did not get it from New

          5  York One, no.

          6                 And, Madam Chair, to answer your

          7  question about Europe.  You are absolutely right, in

          8  Europe they have one system, and the problem is, for

          9  better or worse, 10 years ago or so, the federal

         10  government here decided to deregulate and allow us

         11  here to do a different system than Europe, and

         12  Europe's system is far better then ours right now,

         13  perhaps we will pass them, who knows? But, right

         14  now, that is the main reason why we have so many of

         15  these towers because you have about seven different

         16  companies now vying for locations to put these

         17  towers up.  In Europe they do not have that, and

         18  that is why.

         19                 Let me start with the Health

         20  Department and Dr. Leighton.  I am going to read to

         21  you part of the World, well the federal

         22  communications study, in its own study, in its Q and

         23  A, said that, "further investigation is needed to

         24  confirm the finding by some scientific literature",

         25  which suggests that exposure to relatively low-
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          2  levels of radiation may cause human health hazards,

          3  in addition, the World Health Organization states

          4  that, "although it is unlikely that exposure to

          5  radiation from base stations will lead to cancer,

          6  there are gaps in the knowledge that need to be

          7  filled, such as the long- term effects of multiple

          8  base stations in a small area".

          9                 I have a New Zealand study which I

         10  will provide to you, which also says that, "exposure

         11  to low- level radiation causes sleep disturbances,

         12  melatonin reduction and cancer in many parts of the

         13  human body".  This includes cell phone base

         14  stations, and that the public health surveys should

         15  be carried out right now, and continue progressively

         16  over the next two decades because the prompt

         17  effects, the immediate effects such as miscarriage,

         18  cardiac disruptions, sleep disturbance, and chronic

         19  fatigue could well be early indicators of adverse

         20  health effects.

         21                 In your own testimony, you state that

         22  studies have not yet been conducted, that is on page

         23  two, regarding base stations, and that some

         24  questions have not been conclusively answered, and

         25  that is from your testimony.
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          2                 We are potentially talking about

          3  peoples lives here, and health, respectively.  It is

          4  not enough to say, some questions have not been

          5  conclusively answered, and then say we do not have

          6  the money and we do not have the expertise to do it.

          7    That is not acceptable.  You are the Department of

          8  Health, you are in charge of protecting the health

          9  of over 8 million citizens.

         10                 What do you plan to do to determine

         11  the health effects of radiation on our citizens?

         12                 MS. LEIGHTON:  I do not think I was

         13  saying that a study, more studies should not be

         14  done.  That is not at all what I was saying, and I

         15  think that base stations, we do not have a lot of

         16  published literature, and we did not find any on

         17  base stations in particular.

         18                 If you found some, we would be glad

         19  to review it,

         20  as well.

         21                 I think what I was saying regarding

         22  whether the Health Department could do a study is

         23  that the Health Department is not an ideologic

         24  research facility.  We do not do that type of

         25  research.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Isn't the

          3  Health Department presently doing research on

          4  certain health effects relating to September 11th?

          5                 MS. LEIGHTON:  The Health Department

          6  has a registry, a World Trade Center registry.  That

          7  is not a study in itself.  It is basically a listing

          8  of people, their exposures, so other people can do

          9  studies off of that, and I think that has been

         10  something that has been commonly misunderstood, I

         11  think in general, is that that itself is not a

         12  study.

         13                 We do some kind of research, we do

         14  research the involves evaluating our programs.  We

         15  look at descriptive information and the prevalence

         16  of disease in certain areas, and we may do small

         17  studies but this type of study, first of all,

         18  because of the ubiquity of cell phone towers in our

         19  City, it is very hard to do a solid case study,

         20  where you have adequate numbers of people who are

         21  not exposed.  Not only to cell phone towers but also

         22  to other electromagnetic fields that could also have

         23  potential effects.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  If I may

         25  just interrupt, I understand because you are saying
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          2  exactly what you said in your testimony, that it is

          3  difficult, it is expensive and that you do not do

          4  it, you do not have the expertise.  Let us assume

          5  that is all true, it may or may not be true, but let

          6  us assume it is true right now.

          7                 This is the City of New York, can we

          8  contract this out?  Can we work with colleges?  Can

          9  we work with universities? We have to do something.

         10  To sit there, and say we are doing nothing, is not

         11  acceptable.  So, what can we do working together to

         12  get a study done?

         13                 And, in fact, I have a report here

         14  from a Jersey paper, the Hudson Report, which shows

         15  that the Jersey City Council forced the Jersey City

         16  to do an independent, to contract out a study on a

         17  much smaller scale of radio emissions regarding cell

         18  phone antennas.  So, it has been done, and I would

         19  like to know what we can do working together, to get

         20  one done if your agency cannot do it on its own.

         21                 MR. LEIGHTON:  Just to, I do not know

         22  what that requirement in New Jersey was but study of

         23  emissions themselves to investigate emissions, is

         24  different than the study of emissions, exposures,

         25  and health effects.  So, I do not know what they
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          2  actually required, and emissions studying may be

          3  something that one could consider to see how much is

          4  available.  I think that the National Institute of

          5  Health are major funders of ideologic research in

          6  our country.  This is a federal agency.  There are

          7  many areas of study that someone could go to them

          8  and try to solicit funding.  We do not, I mean, it

          9  would be huge amount of money, and I am not saying

         10  that it should not be done.  At this point we just

         11  do not have the, to be honest, the expertise, the

         12  capacity or the finances, clearly but that, as you

         13  say, is if it is really a health effect, and I do

         14  think the other thing is, is we because of the small

         15  effects of something of radio frequencies, it is

         16  going to be hard unless you have a really, really

         17  well designed study, done over a long period of

         18  time.  If you are looking at end points, like

         19  cancer, cancer has a long latency period, so you are

         20  going to need to follow the same people for many,

         21  many years.  People move, so they are no longer

         22  going to be exposed to the same radio frequencies in

         23  five years, maybe, as they are now.

         24                 So, there is a lot of complexities to

         25  doing a study, and I think that it really requires
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          2  academic researchers, and the support of federal

          3  government to really do this well, and understand it

          4  well, otherwise we would just be spending money on

          5  another study that may show us no effects, which,

          6  that is not what the goal is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, the

          8  goal is to have an independent study, and most of

          9  the studies that I have seen have been paid for by

         10  groups that are interested.  And, that is why we

         11  would ask the City to do it.  Again, I am not going

         12  to let that go, that we just, we cannot do anything

         13  so we will not.

         14                 I would like to continue to work with

         15  you to make sure that we call on the federal

         16  government, or your agency, or for you to contract

         17  this out and get this done.

         18                 I mean, we have heard in the past the

         19  same story from agencies, either City, state, and

         20  federal regarding lead paint, regarding asbestos,

         21  regarding how they are safe, and we do not know

         22  enough, and then we learn too late that they were

         23  not safe, and I do not want that to happen again,

         24  that we just do not know enough about cell phone

         25  towers and we will not know enough until everyone is
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          2  surrounded by those things.  There is five more on

          3  the other side of that building, and there are

          4  buildings on either corner with those things on it,

          5  and there is another picture that will come up later

          6  that is across the street from a school, and across

          7  the street from a church, so we do not want to wait

          8  until this is too late to know the health effects.

          9                 So, I do not want to keep asking the

         10  same question, I know what your answer will be but I

         11  am not going to keep, stay with that answer, we will

         12  keep working on it.

         13                 You mentioned the fact that you

         14  checked the effects, I assume it is the Department

         15  of Health that would check, well at this point does

         16  not check the emissions but we are going to work on

         17  that.

         18                 Right now, am I correct Ms. Arnold

         19  that the Department of Buildings does not check any

         20  of these emissions from these cell phone towers?

         21                 MS. ARNOLD:  That is correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, and so

         23  we rely on the FCC, and my information is that the

         24  FCC has two inspectors for the entire northeast

         25  coast to check whether someone is being subjected to
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          2  unacceptable levels of radiation.  Is that correct?

          3                 MS. ARNOLD:  I do not have any

          4  independent knowledge of it, I know that you have

          5  indicated that but we would not have occasion to

          6  look at that in our work.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay.  Let

          8  me get back to that in a moment.

          9                 So, your testimony is that you

         10  support the bill that we have introduced to keep

         11  records where these cell phone towers are going up

         12  in the future.  Is that correct?  With a 90 day,

         13  with a change from 30 days to 90 days?

         14                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes, and some other

         15  minor technical things we would like to address with

         16  you but, yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, we

         18  appreciate that. But, the problem I have discussed

         19  with some members from your agency prior to today,

         20  is the fact that apparently you cannot go back and

         21  find out how many of these cell phone towers exist

         22  already?  Is that correct?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  That is correct with

         24  respect to a hard number.  I think that is right, we

         25  have never required that these applications identify
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          2  themselves as such in the past, and so, we would not

          3  have a hard and fast way of capturing what has been

          4  filed to date.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So,

          6  presently, what needs to be filed to put up one of

          7  these base stations?

          8                 MS. ARNOLD:  An application for an

          9  alteration application for the structure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And, it is

         11  not even required that they mention that there is a

         12  cell phone base station, presently?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  We do not prescribe the

         14  terminology. I think that is really our information

         15  technology problem, is that there is no prescribed

         16  terminology for the way an application would come

         17  in, so we do not have a hard and fast way of

         18  reaching back and capturing what has been filed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  That is

         20  amazing because, I mean, I appreciate the fact that

         21  we may know where they go in the future but it is

         22  almost useless if we do not know where they exist

         23  presently.  So, we will need to come up with some

         24  way to determine where they are, and again, I will

         25  work with your agency on that after today.
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          2                 One of the ways, though, we can

          3  protect our citizens now is by measuring radiation,

          4  and as I said, the FCC does not do it.

          5                 I would like to propose, and I want

          6  your thoughts on this, that anyone who tries to get

          7  a permit to do this, has to pay an additional fee,

          8  which goes to the City, which then the City would

          9  then use to hire inspectors to go out and check

         10  present radiation levels.

         11                 Would that be something that your

         12  Administration would support?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think, speaking from

         14  the Department of Buildings perspective, it is way

         15  beyond our authority to speak on behalf of the rest

         16  of the agencies, and the Administration as a whole.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, what

         18  agency would be in charge of doing that, of going

         19  out and checking radiation levels?

         20                 MS. LEIGHTON:  I think that is

         21  something that would need to be taken up with the

         22  Administration.  We do have an environmental agency,

         23  as you know, and there are other agencies. But, I

         24  think that would need to be addressed at a higher

         25  level than us.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  We will then

          3  deal with the higher levels down the road.  But,

          4  that is something that I think we can, hopefully,

          5  agree on down the future, to start protecting

          6  citizens now from the levels that we know are

          7  harmful, before we get additional information.

          8                 Last question, regarding the

          9  exemption, I guess this would be to the Buildings

         10  Department.

         11                 In 1984, actually, we passed a

         12  resolution requiring cell phone companies to get a

         13  permit from the Board of Standards and Appeals, that

         14  would go through the Community Board, that would go

         15  through Zoning, and that would cost more money and

         16  we would actually, I am not saying that is a good

         17  thing, but we would actually know where these cell

         18  phone towers exist.

         19                 In 1998, Richard Visconti (phonetic),

         20  Deputy Commissioner of the Department of Buildings

         21  repealed the provisions of that regulation, which is

         22  allowed, this wild west proliferation with no idea

         23  where they are.

         24                 Under what authority was that

         25  appealed, repealed?
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          2                 MS. ARNOLD:  Well, and I guess first

          3  of all, I would respectfully take issue with the use

          4  of the word repealed.  I do not believe we have

          5  repealed any section of zoning.  The authority we

          6  have exercised in issuing the Technical Policy and

          7  Procedure Notice, to which you make reference, is

          8  that given by the Charter to interpret the zoning.

          9                 There are still requirements under

         10  Article 2 of the zoning for certain types of

         11  communication structures to go to the Board of

         12  Standards and Appeals for permits, special permits,

         13  that would go through the process you outlined but

         14  the TPPN that we issued in '98, exercised our

         15  authority to interpret the zoning in a way that

         16  allowed certain installations if they comply with

         17  certain specifications outlined in the policy to by

         18  filed and as under they Code, is alteration

         19  applications, and not be subject to zoning.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You are

         21  saying that the authority that you use comes from

         22  the Buildings Department to override, or I used the

         23  word repealed, or disregard, let's say, our loss.

         24                 So you used the authority of the

         25  Buildings Department to do that, is that correct?
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          2                 MS. ARNOLD:  The Buildings Department

          3  has the authority under the City Charter to

          4  interpret the zoning, and that is the authority we

          5  exercised in that policy.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, I

          7  would say that that authority rests in the City

          8  Council, or at least in the Department of City

          9  Planning, and not the Building Department but that

         10  is something that we will also be discussing.

         11                 I have got so many more but I know my

         12  colleagues do, so I will stop asking for now.

         13                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, hi

         15  kids.  We have the second grade class of P.S. 29,

         16  Brooklyn.  Do not stand near the railing, we do not

         17  want any of you down here.  I mean, we would like

         18  you down here but not over the railing.  Their

         19  teacher is Mrs. Elizabeth Holden.  How are you,

         20  okay?

         21                 And, we have to say that Leo McMahon,

         22  Tom McMahon's son, and Mike McMahon's nephew, where

         23  are you Leo, okay, there he is, welcome.  This was

         24  not the hearing that I would have chose for you to

         25  be at, it is a little boring, but, welcome.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Well, let us

          3  see if we can liven things up, shall we?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  I

          5  always rely on you to do that, Jim.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  You know, these

          7  McMahon's, they are everywhere, you know that?  Of

          8  all ages.

          9                 I have a question for Council member

         10  Quinn.  Is the plural of Madam Chair, Madam Chairs?

         11  Madams Chair?  Madam Chair People's?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I was not

         13  paying attention, sorry.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  The plural of

         15  Madam Chair, is it Madam Chairs?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I guess so.

         17  Let us see, we will have to get the Education

         18  Committee in here to answer that question.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That is

         20  okay, we will pass.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Many other

         22  interesting things we learn here in the Council.

         23                 Phyliss, may I call you Phyliss?

         24                 MS. ARNOLD:  You bet.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you,
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          2  Phyliss.

          3                 I want to follow up on the line of

          4  questioning from Council member Vallone.

          5                 I know you are not the public policy

          6  maker of the agency but, certainly, if there were

          7  meetings discussing this, you would have

          8  participated in it.

          9                 Clearly, the Council members are

         10  demonstrating a concern about the number of these

         11  things.

         12                 Is the agency, or has the agency

         13  itself thought about this, and aside from Council

         14  member Vallone's legislation, has the agency

         15  contemplated introducing legislation or regulating

         16  these instruments in any way?

         17                 MS. ARNOLD:  No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Does the agency

         19  believe, and maybe this is more to your ability as

         20  general counsel, do you believe that you do, as per

         21  the Charter, currently have the ability, should you

         22  choose to, to regulate these things?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  Differently then we have

         24  you are suggesting?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.
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          2                 MS. ARNOLD:  You know, it is a

          3  question that I would seek counsel on myself from

          4  folks over at the Corporation Council's Office

          5  because we are working in an area of federal

          6  preemption that raises all sort of legal issues, it

          7  is a legal land mine.  But, to the extent we do have

          8  authority under the Charter to interpret zoning and

          9  the federal law permits us to do that, within

         10  certain parameters, I would say yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay.  Would

         12  that fact that the Council is having a hearing, the

         13  fact that there are Council members who have

         14  introduced legislation, the fact that this is

         15  happening across all five boroughs, would that not

         16  prompt the Department, I do not want to say on its

         17  own, because it is not on its own at this point, but

         18  would that prompt the Department to realize that

         19  this is an issue in the five boroughs, and do you

         20  contemplate the Department sitting down along with

         21  its sister agencies to evaluate this situation, and

         22  perhaps, promulgate rules on its own?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  We are always involved,

         24  I do not mean this in a broad and sweeping way but

         25  we are very often involved with conversations with
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          2  our sister agencies on issues of moment, and we

          3  certainly have been on this one, as well.  We will

          4  continue to have discussions with representatives of

          5  DOITT, and City Planning, and folks from our staff

          6  and other interested agencies to answer, my guess,

          7  is with the Council, as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  To get back to

          9  the Technical Policy and Procedure Notice of July

         10  1998, if we wanted to regulate, in some manner, do

         11  you believe that it is necessary for that regulation

         12  to take the form of a zoning text change, or can we

         13  do it via local law?

         14                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think this, to the

         15  extent we are exercising authority to interpret

         16  zoning, it would be my opinion that this is a land

         17  use matter, appropriately addressed in zoning

         18  provisions.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay, and one

         20  last question, Madam Chair.

         21                 It says in some of the briefing

         22  notices that we have, it talks about Part B of that

         23  Technical Policy and Procedure Notice, and it states

         24  that the "installation of cellular antennas and

         25  related equipment requires the filing of an
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          2  alteration permit". What specifically on that

          3  alteration permit, is there anything specifically on

          4  that alteration permit that indicates, in any way,

          5  shape, or form, that this has to do with cell, or is

          6  that the need for Council Member Vallone's

          7  legislation, that it does not.

          8                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think that is

          9  precisely the need. There are certain required

         10  fields of information that identify the applicant,

         11  and various incendiary other characteristics of the

         12  property.  That is the subject of the filing.  But,

         13  when it comes to a general description of the work

         14  type, it is at least until this point, has been at

         15  the discretion of the applicant, is to have them

         16  describe it, so, this legislation, this bill, if

         17  enacted, would put us, I guess, in the position of

         18  directing the filing community to use, at the very

         19  least, to use prescribed words, prescribed forms to

         20  enable us to track it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  So, when

         22  someone puts in a alteration permit, it is up to the

         23  applicant to, kind of, describe the work done, and

         24  the applicant can choose, in this instance and has

         25  chosen, whether intentionally for some nefarious
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          2  reason or not, not to put cell phone towers, base

          3  station, et cetera?

          4                 MS. ARNOLD:  They could, I will say

          5  again, that based on those filings that came in

          6  using certain key words, we were able to identify

          7  some 600 jobs filed last year.  So, not everybody is

          8  omitting the key words.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I guess my

         10  question goes to, not really this issue as to the

         11  broader issue that, wouldn't we want an alteration

         12  permits that the DOB is handing out, wouldn't we

         13  want whether it is the installation of one of these

         14  or some other concern that we may have?  Wouldn't we

         15  want the most specific language, in the most

         16  precise, it sounds like it is a pretty general

         17  paragraph, and you could write whatever you wanted

         18  on it, and obtain an alteration permit?

         19                 MS. ARNOLD:  It really depends on the

         20  type of work. Certain alteration permits that cover

         21  minor work, which this would be, meaning in our

         22  world it does not necessarily require a change in

         23  egress or occupancy, or separately identified sign

         24  permits, for example, things of that sort.  So, I

         25  think this really is a matter of the issue catching
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          2  up with the technology.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay, thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          6  member Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 My question is for the Buildings

         10  Department.  You may not have the answer but because

         11  you are here I will raise it.

         12                 The question is, are these base

         13  stations allowed on Landmarks Buildings?  That is

         14  something, probably, your agency would be able to

         15  find out, and then I will tell you why I ask.

         16                 MS. ARNOLD:  Any alteration on a

         17  Landmark Building has to clear Landmarks.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand

         19  that.

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  And, so, I would not

         21  know as a categorical matter whether Landmarks would

         22  approve these or disapprove, or condition them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, it seems

         24  like Landmarks would probably not, so what I am

         25  suggesting to the Chairs, is that we might look at
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          2  the reasons that they may reject these things, and

          3  follow that avenue.  All right?

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          6  member James.

          7                 Also, we have been joined by, I think

          8  she is still here, Council member Gale Brewer, who

          9  is on the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Just a

         11  question with regards to this Electromagnetic

         12  Spectrum diagram, it says cell phones and base

         13  stations are basically--.

         14                 MS. LEIGHTON:  They are about in the

         15  same location right there.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Oh, okay, so,

         17  and would one base station, or based on this diagram

         18  here, the ten or fifteen base stations on this

         19  building would similarly be located on this diagram,

         20  at this level?

         21                 MS. LEIGHTON:  Yes, there is a

         22  difference between the, where you lie on this and

         23  the amount of waves that are given off, so, it is

         24  like a light bulb can be a 40 watt light bulb versus

         25  a 100 watt light bulb, and one gives off more then
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          2  another, but it still would be in the same place on

          3  this spectrum.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, based upon

          5  your testimony, you are indicating that this

          6  building with about, I do not know, 12 or 13, I

          7  cannot see all of them, base stations would be

          8  similarly situated?

          9                 MS. LEIGHTON:  It would give off

         10  more, there would be more emissions in total, but it

         11  would still be situated in the same type of wave, in

         12  the same place.

         13                 My understanding from looking at the

         14  literature, and just, I am not an expert in this

         15  area, it is a very specific area and very complex

         16  area that is not an area of my expertise, this

         17  emissions area, but, there would be, obviously, more

         18  emissions from more towers.

         19                 My understanding is that the amount

         20  is still relatively low, even with larger number of

         21  towers.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you, and

         23  to Ms. Arnold, Ms. Arnold, you were able to, after

         24  doing a search, discovered at least 600 jobs that

         25  had been filed where there were applications for
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          2  alterations, and so, based upon your testimony, it

          3  is my understanding that this is not all inclusive,

          4  correct?

          5                 MS. ARNOLD:  True.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, and so,

          7  based upon the concerns expressed today, and the

          8  legislation that has been proposed, are you

          9  preparing to change the terminology in your

         10  application to reflect the concerns expressed?

         11                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes, certainly.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         13                 And, Council, with regards to the

         14  argument, that in fact, the state legislation might

         15  be precluded as a result of the FCC regulation,

         16  specifically, Section 704, of the Telecommunications

         17  Act of 1996, are you suggesting that the term that,

         18   "no state or local government, or instrumentality

         19  may regulate the placement, et cetera, on the basis

         20  of environmental effects of radio frequency

         21  emissions"?  So, have the courts been interpreting

         22  environmental effects, and health impacts, the same,

         23  and that is why it is your argument that they have

         24  been thrown out?

         25  They have been challenged, and successfully
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          2  challenged?

          3                 MR. CONJEMI:  I think they have been

          4  interpreting them, in terms of the FCC rules, that

          5  have been laid out in terms of emissions, so,

          6  whenever a local government or a state government

          7  attempts to impose a moratorium, say on building,

          8  while they study or attempts to stray from the

          9  emission guidelines that the FCC put out, those have

         10  been pre- empted.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, the state

         12  legislation, as well as the legislation and the

         13  resolutions proposed today, would stand challenged,

         14  correct?

         15                 MR. CONJEMI:  I would not, Council

         16  member Vallone's bill, in terms of, it is an

         17  informational type bill, which would lay out where

         18  the cell stations are, I do not see a pre- emption

         19  issue with that.  But, any type of study that calls

         20  for a moratorium, I think there would be substantial

         21  challenges from the industry and, perhaps, many of

         22  them would hold up.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Can you cite

         24  any particular case where they have been challenged

         25  in the courts, and they have been struck down?
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          2                 MR. CONJEMI:  Actually, I did not

          3  come with a case log, but I can actually provide you

          4  with that information.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

          6                 MR. CONJEMI:  You are welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          8  woman Clarke.

          9                 MR. CONJEMI:  Excuse me, Council

         10  member, I can actually, the FCC rules themselves

         11  though were held up in a case in which I can cite to

         12  you.

         13                 Cellular Phone Task Force versus FCC,

         14  it is a Second Circuit decision, 2000, so the rules

         15  were actually held up.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         17                 MS. ARNOLD:  But, one other footnote,

         18  if I may Council member, you had asked if we were

         19  going forward at the Department of Buildings to

         20  implement the changes, and I think we will certainly

         21  be considering it, and following the course of the

         22  legislation, making our decision in no small part, I

         23  think, based on what happens with the bill.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And just a

         25  follow up question.  Those 600 applications that you
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          2  were able to uncover, where were the base stations

          3  located for them, do you have any idea?

          4                 The 600 jobs that were filed, that

          5  you uncovered, that were filed last year, based upon

          6  that research, can you basically uncover where they

          7  were located, or determine where they were located?

          8                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  You can.

         10                 MS. ARNOLD:  We have a basic borough

         11  breakdown, in gross terms, and with some work to go

         12  back and re- match them, we could identify

         13  locations.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  If you could

         15  do a search of that, and determine where they are

         16  located, I would like to see where they are located

         17  in the City of New York.

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  By parcel?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  I anticipated a question

         21  of that sort Council member, and it is going to take

         22  us a little bit of time to do it, but that is

         23  something that we could provide.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. ARNOLD:  You are welcome.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          3  member Clarke.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair.

          6                 Dr. Leighton, in listening to your

          7  testimony, it brought me back to, I guess, Physics

          8  101 but my brain is kind of foggy.  I wanted to ask

          9  a couple of questions around emissions, and

         10  exposure.

         11                 Are emissions static, is that what is

         12  implied in your statement, that the emissions are

         13  static, in other words, there is a certain level of

         14  emission that will remain constant from these

         15  towers?

         16                 MS. LEIGHTON:  I am not an emissions

         17  expert either, and I presume that they are a general

         18  level of emissions that come out of the towers,

         19  although, I imagine that they do vary, as well.

         20  Also, in a place like New York City, my

         21  understanding is that there are different

         22  interferences from different kind of structures, and

         23  buildings, et cetera, could interfere with the

         24  levels of emissions, so.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Okay, I just
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          2  wanted to raise these as questions because I want us

          3  to think about the fact that they are, or the

          4  concept of, perhaps, a tipping point, all right, and

          5  I just wondered whether we have a number of

          6  different types of emissions in this City, of

          7  varying types based on the technology that exists

          8  around us, and I was wondering whether there is a

          9  point where one emission can boost another

         10  emissions, thereby, aggregating a certain amount of

         11  emission that over time creates a threat.  And, have

         12  we looked into that type of a situation because we

         13  are putting technology on top of technology, in a

         14  very urban, enclosed setting.  I am just concerned

         15  about the people who live on the top floor of that

         16  building right there.  Let alone the next building,

         17  and whether there is a cumulative effect of having

         18  so many in such close proximity to one another, so,

         19  I think that it is well worth it to, at least, begin

         20  this type of discussion, and look into I am sure

         21  somewhere in the tri- state area there are experts

         22  who are actually looking at this right now, and we

         23  have just not made the connection.  And, I think not

         24  only is this helpful for our setting because we are

         25  so unique but, perhaps, for other parts of the
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          2  nation.

          3                 Having said that, I understand that

          4  funding is an issue and I wanted to ask whether we

          5  have looked into having some of these companies

          6  compensate or, I understand, let me back up a bit,

          7  that companies are willing to compensate property

          8  owners to the tune of anywhere between $5,000 to

          9  $30,000 for placement of these base stations.

         10                 Have we ever thought about, perhaps,

         11  getting these same carriers to contribute to a fund

         12  that would look at the research issues that we are

         13  talking about here, that are of concern to us?

         14  Perhaps, contribute to a fund that would get us the

         15  type of inspectors we need to, at least, be able to

         16  know what type of issues or concerns emanate from

         17  the attachment to structures in our City, and

         18  perhaps, even a tracking system so that we get a

         19  sense and understand, at least, where these clusters

         20  are of towers and technology within our City.  And,

         21  so that we can begin the process of at least being

         22  knowledgeable about what is going on right now

         23  because I really get the sense that we are operating

         24  in a vacuum here, and that a lot of the expertise

         25  already exists to address this, and if it is a
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          2  matter of funding, these folks are, obviously, are

          3  willing to pay a lot of money to make sure that

          4  their communications networks work.

          5                 I think it would be only right to

          6  suggest that, perhaps, we have some sort of fund

          7  established to deal with the fallout that may occur

          8  as a result of the proliferation of these towers.

          9                 What do you think?

         10                 MR. CONJEMI:  My only response to

         11  that, I mean, obviously, we want to be careful to

         12  balance potential health impacts with the roll- out.

         13    Council member Vallone, I think, in his opening

         14  statements, talked about the need to have a robust

         15  wireless infrastructure in New York.

         16                 My concern from, and you notice, I am

         17  a lawyer, not a doctor or an engineer, my concern is

         18  that we as a City, have to make sure we balance that

         19  with making sure we do have a robust infrastructure.

         20                 We have been rated by Consumer

         21  Reports, that did an independent study, as one of

         22  the city's with the worst wireless coverage, and

         23  that is not something that we are proud of.  We

         24  would like to have adequate coverage throughout the

         25  City.
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          2                 The City already represents an

          3  engineering challenge for siting, so, as long as we

          4  can do this safely, we need to make sure that we are

          5  able to have the services that are out there,

          6  adequate 911 coverage from the wireless, from

          7  wireless calls, as well as the new technologies that

          8  are being talked about.  You know, we at 311 did a

          9  survey and thousands of New Yorkers responded to

         10  that survey.

         11                 I just want to make sure that the

         12  Council's aware of, kind of, in the broad scape of

         13  this policy debate, that there is an alternative

         14  perspective, by many thousands of New Yorkers.

         15  Thousands of New Yorkers called the City and

         16  complained about areas where coverage is poor, so, I

         17  think that many New Yorkers understand that coverage

         18  is poor in some of the areas, and that the City

         19  should be also doing something about that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  You are

         21  preaching to the choir.  I hate when my signal

         22  drops.  I hate it, and I get charged for it.  I hate

         23  it, but, isn't there a way that we can do some

         24  planning here?   Do you know what I am saying, I

         25  mean, you do not just pop up an industry in a vacuum
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          2  and it is a free- for- all, and anyone do whatever

          3  they want to do in the City of New York.

          4                 I mean, we have an obligation here to

          5  be forward thinking.  We have an obligation here to

          6  do some urban planning, and you know, hey, I wish I

          7  had the materials, I would start, where does it end?

          8    Where does it end in terms of us having maverick

          9  industries within the City?  That is ridiculous.  I

         10  am not saying that, I think everyone wants a crystal

         11  clear signal but there may be a better way of having

         12  that happen that assures that peoples safety are in

         13  place.  How do we manage a situation like this?  It

         14  is like opening a can or worms, and now trying to

         15  put the worms back in, and come up with a new way.

         16  Why don't we look at a plan for this?  I don't think

         17  there is a person in the City of New York who would

         18  not want to have the best coverage possible.  We pay

         19  for that.  It costs us in the long run for not

         20  having it properly done, but at the same time, costs

         21  can be in a number of different areas. And, the cost

         22  of not knowing, and having a coordinated and

         23  concerted effort to making sure that the health and

         24  well being of our communities are preeminent in this

         25  process.  I think it is a cost we cannot afford to
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          2  pay, and so I hope that you do not get me wrong, we

          3  are not, I am not anti- cell technology, what I am

          4  saying is that, that, not knowing what that produces

          5  in that community over time, in culmination, or in

          6  collaboration with other buildings in that

          7  community, in addition to, perhaps, some other

          8  hazardous situations, in addition to, perhaps,

          9  conditions that people already have that, that may

         10  exacerbate and not knowing this, is negligent. It is

         11  negligent.

         12                 So, I think it is worth it for us to

         13  look at ways of addressing this now, before the

         14  situation gets totally out of hand, and from what I

         15  am hearing, it is approaching that tipping point

         16  now.

         17                 MR. CONJEMI:  Can I respond?  I

         18  agree, I think that we need to be responsible in

         19  understanding what the impact is.

         20                 I just worry about, perhaps, in

         21  posing an additional cost, without clearly

         22  understanding what the end game is.  And, an

         23  additional cost in the industry, which will surely

         24  be passed along to New York City consumers.  For

         25  example, if we are going down the path of looking at
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          2  the FCC standards, and somehow a health study would

          3  lead to a different type of standard, we are going

          4  to run smack into the preempts and issues, or, if we

          5  are talking about adding some kind of cost to the

          6  industry with regard to seeing whether there is

          7  compliance, we just have to understand in the

          8  context of the information that is out there, I am

          9  not speaking as to the, I am not a doctor, as I

         10  said, but, I think the FCC has put out what I think

         11  are reasonable suggestions to local authorities, and

         12  I would hope that the Council would take a look at

         13  that information, and see whether or not, what is

         14  already out there as suggestions to local governing

         15  bodies may work.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And, just in

         17  closing, I would like to say that it may be worth it

         18  for these industries to invest a little bit up

         19  front, as opposed to dealing with some of the huge,

         20  huge awards that people like tobacco industry folks

         21  are dealing with today.

         22                 And, just finally to say that the FCC

         23  has not done a prescription for a specific area like

         24  New York City.  They have given out very general

         25  regulations.  We need a prescription for our very
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          2  unique environment here, and that is ultimately what

          3  we need to be looking in terms of planning, not

          4  these broad brush, I mean, I do not know of another

          5  town like ours, and I do not know that a one- size

          6  fits all is going to do the job here.  I think it is

          7  up to us at the local level to begin to raise the

          8  appropriate questions, so that we can at least feel

          9  good within our hearts that we have done everything

         10  we can to make sure that the people of the City of

         11  New York, ten, fifteen, twenty years from now are

         12  not suffering because we came up with every excuse

         13  for not doing what we knew we should have done

         14  earlier on.

         15                 That is all I am saying.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         17  woman Reyna.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I am going to

         19  apologize for repeating myself.

         20                 I think Council member Clarke has

         21  just mentioned what I wanted to touch upon.

         22                 In just doing so, first I will ask,

         23  is there a process that we are implementing for

         24  tenants, residents of New York to able to say that

         25  they do not want this type of antenna base
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          2  constructed on top of their building?  Because I

          3  think there is a vacuum process where New Yorkers

          4  are not going to be able to say because they are not

          5  the property owners to not agree and oppose the

          6  installation of these antennas?

          7                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, the Buildings

          8  Departments process for issuing building permits,

          9  which is the vehicle through which these jobs are

         10  filed, under the Building Code, is a ministerial

         11  process.  And what that means is, it is not a public

         12  process, it is not something that we have the

         13  discretion to decide, if you will.           If a

         14  filing comes in, and it complies with Code and

         15  Zoning, or our interpretive policies on either one,

         16  we have to issue the permit regardless of

         17  objections.  So, our process is not an adjudicative

         18  one, it is not one where people have a right, unlike

         19  ULURP, for example, or where it is advisory or some

         20  quasi judicial process.  It is not one where people

         21  have a right to notice, and an opportunity to be

         22  heard in opposition.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I am happy to

         24  know that you concur with exactly with what I fear,

         25  which is the fact that there is no process in place,
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          2  and Council had mentioned how 311, through a survey

          3  of New Yorkers complaining through this system, that

          4  they do not have a crystal clear signal.

          5                 At the same time, we did not ask

          6  those same New Yorkers who were complaining, "Well,

          7  would you mind an antenna on your building so that

          8  you could get a crystal clear signal"?

          9                 It is one of those things where we

         10  are right now fighting for borough self- sufficiency

         11  of waste, and we believe that there are certain

         12  communities where cluster cases are occurring, and

         13  we are feeling the effects of that because we did

         14  not plan ahead.

         15                 So, my question is, as far as

         16  liability is concerned, are we lobbying the FCC to

         17  be able to impose some type of, I do not want to say

         18  fund, but for lack of another word, set aside

         19  certain, a certain mechanism and dollar amount

         20  where, if, twenty years from now these are areas

         21  where theses antenna were placed, we do not have the

         22  findings now to prove that there will be a health

         23  risk factor, but that once there is, we are covered?

         24                 MR. CONJEMI:  No, we are not doing

         25  that at the FCC level.  I think, perhaps, the reason
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          2  that the FCC had tried to, in many ways, put an end

          3  to jurisdiction by jurisdiction discussions of this

          4  issue, was that they felt that in their review of

          5  the literature, of the medical information that was

          6  out there, that their standards were set so far

          7  below, I think the quote is, they say in their

          8  report, "Most facilities create maximum exposures

          9  that are only a small fraction of the limits"

         10                 I think they wanted to actually, in

         11  essence, put an end to this kind of jurisdiction by

         12  jurisdiction analysis.  Now, I understand as a New

         13  Yorker, I want to live in a safe city.  We all want

         14  to live in a safe city, and just like waste, and

         15  just like lots of other types of services, we all

         16  need our garbage picked up but who wants a transfer

         17  station right next to where they live?  In order to

         18  have a robust working infrastructure that provides

         19  the services that New Yorkers demand, we need sites.

         20    And, we are going to need more sites over the

         21  years, as the technology progresses.              We

         22  have not been lobbying for that, for the particular

         23  item that you mentioned, Council member.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Is it possible

         25  that we bring this issue to the FCC, so that they
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          2  understand that this is a collective sentiment from

          3  New York, where the responsibility is being shifted

          4  towards the municipality but, at the end of the day,

          5  who is going to be liable?

          6                 MR. CONJEMI:  As to the liability

          7  issues, I am really not sure.

          8                 I am also not sure if this kind of

          9  argument would be falling on deaf ears at the FCC.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And, so then,

         11  how is our municipality taking responsibility to

         12  ensure the safety of New Yorkers?

         13                 MR. CONJEMI:  You have heard we are

         14  going to work with Council member Vallone on the

         15  bill.  I believe that bill will, I am sorry, we have

         16  expressed that we will work with Council member

         17  Vallone on the bill.

         18                 I think that with some minor changes

         19  that is a bill that the Administration would

         20  support.  That would allow, there would be then the

         21  ability for New Yorkers to know exactly,

         22  prospectively, at the very least, where these cell

         23  antennas are going, and that empowers people.  That

         24  empowers the public to challenge, if they feel that

         25  there is an aggregation or if there is a potential
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          2  health risk, the information will be more widely

          3  available, and categorized.  So, I think that is one

          4  step.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Well, I look

          6  forward to those further discussions, and I will be

          7  working with our Chairs to just play a part in

          8  making sure that we take the proper steps in moving

          9  forward.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You are not

         12  off the hook yet, we have still a couple of people

         13  that want to ask you questions.

         14                 I am going to be leaving, I have to

         15  be back in the Bronx by 2 o'clock, but I leave the

         16  hearing in the hands of my very, very able

         17  colleague, Christine Quinn.

         18                 Council member Brewer.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 For DOITT and for Buildings, my

         22  question is, I believe the Telecommunications Act is

         23  up in September of this year for re- authorization,

         24  and obviously, rights- of- way is a big issue, not

         25  just here but around the United States.  And, I am
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          2  just wondering if Judy Chester (phonetic) or anybody

          3  in the Washington office, are you proposing any

          4  changes so that, obviously, pre emption is always

          5  going to be a problem but are there changes that you

          6  are suggesting to the Telecommunications Act that

          7  would improve the rights- of- way in places like New

          8  York City?  I could check with Judy also, Augie.

          9                 MR. CONJEMI:  Sure, as part of our

         10  federal agenda that we work with Judy on, we have

         11  always advocated for strengthening rights- of- way,

         12  authority at the local level. Unfortunately, this

         13  has been at the federal level, kind of a tidal wave

         14  in the opposite direction.  The Senate and the

         15  House, the actual Telecommunications Act was passed

         16  under President Clinton's Administration in 1996,

         17  substantially reduced local authorities abilities

         18  to, authority for example in this context, in terms

         19  of wireless facilities, however, we still have

         20  rights- of- way management authority and we have

         21  exercised that on a number of occasions with regard

         22  to our franchises.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         24                 MR. CONJEMI:  But, we have been

         25  advocating for protection but right now, I think,
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          2  the tone in Washington is not one of increasing

          3  local authority, it is one of diminishing local

          4  authority.  So, we are trying to protect what we

          5  have.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, but I

          7  am just saying we should work on the, sort of, real

          8  estate rights- of- way issues, the siting issues,

          9  which is more of what I am talking about when I say

         10  rights- of- way.

         11                 MR. CONJEMI:  I mean, you do realize

         12  on the wireless facilities though, we are going to

         13  run right into the private property owners rights

         14  too?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I do, no I

         16  have been through it.

         17                 MR. CONJEMI:  Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, but I

         19  would like to see some, at least, attempt from the

         20  Mayor's Office on this issue, and something in

         21  writing, something that you are doing in terms of

         22  the re- authorization on this issue.

         23                 The second question I have.  I know

         24  that you mentioned from Buildings that there are 600

         25  jobs filed, that was in your testimony.
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          2                 My question is, are those just cell

          3  phone?  Do they include any kind of Tel- Com Hotel,

          4  are they for some of the larger antennas that are

          5  not just for cell but for multiple uses?  What does

          6  the 600 represent?

          7                 MS. ARNOLD:  The short answer to that

          8  we would not have a basis to know for sure.  These

          9  jobs are ones that we were able to identify for the

         10  use of certain key words, including antenna,

         11  cellular, cell, mobile, it could be any of a variety

         12  of installations under this minor work or work type

         13  that was filed with us last year.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Because I had

         15  seen a number last year of 1,039, so that is why I

         16  am confused.  Just so you know, when we had

         17  requested for the Telecommunications, for the

         18  Technology Committee last year, we had seen a much

         19  larger number, and we actually thought that was low.

         20    Excuse me?

         21                 MS. ARNOLD:  From us?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes, 1,039,

         23  or 1,069.

         24                 MS. ARNOLD:  Okay, I will check.  I

         25  will run it down.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, I can

          3  get you a copy of the testimony that you gave, or

          4  somebody from your department about a year and a

          5  half ago.

          6                 MS. ARNOLD:  That would be great,

          7  thanks.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  But,

          9  the issue is, how, within that 600 or 1,000, or

         10  more, at some point, that installation, if it is in

         11  certain construction mode, does it become part of

         12  the base property tax of a building?  Do you know?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, I am afraid I do

         14  not, Council member.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, that is

         16  another question that is a revenue issue.

         17                 My understanding is it does but I am

         18  not clear at what point.  And, I also want to

         19  understand the fact of the matter is, not only is

         20  there concern, I know for many people in the

         21  audience about the health risk but I know that the

         22  siting of the antenna can often be one the building,

         23  and that is where I think we draw the line.  I am

         24  not opposed to on the roof, but I am definitely

         25  opposed to on the building.  We have met with many
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          2  companies, and the issue, they say, is that you get

          3  more coverage, and I understand that, if you are at

          4  a certain height, particularly in residential

          5  communities like ours on the West Side, where the

          6  buildings are tall, so when you go up, less coverage

          7  on the street. I understand from the industry

          8  perspective, but from the apartment, tenant

          9  perspective, it is not acceptable.

         10                 So, I am just wondering of that 600,

         11  do you have any sense of which are on the roof, and

         12  which are along stacked or not stacked along the

         13  building?

         14                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, our data would not

         15  tell us that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And, is there

         17  a different kind of application, one or the other?

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Could there

         20  be?

         21                 MS. ARNOLD:  Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay,

         23  because, do you have any say, or do you feel you are

         24  pre- empted in the difference between the roof

         25  versus the stacking on the building?  Is that also a
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          2  pre- emption issue?

          3                 MS. ARNOLD:  I do not think so,

          4  although, I say that without knowing for sure.  But,

          5  I would not think so.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So, we could

          7  outlaw along the stacking on the building versus the

          8  roof?

          9                 MS. ARNOLD:  Well, I was answering

         10  with respect to tracking.  In terms of outright

         11  prohibitions, I think we would indeed backup to the

         12  issue, and we would have to take a harder look.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So, you could

         14  take a harder look at that?

         15                 MS. ARNOLD:  Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  And,

         17  then, just finally, the full number of applications,

         18  I know you may have been through this earlier but

         19  the process is what?  Is there a regular Buildings

         20  Department fee for any kind of an application?  Is

         21  it just a regular, normal process?

         22                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes, these are filed for

         23  the same reason that any structure is filed with us,

         24  and so, the general process that governs the filing,

         25  with respect to all sort of structures in the City,
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          2  governs these, as well.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, because

          4  the way it happens, again, not planning, as I

          5  understand it is industry contacts an owner, finding

          6  an owners name somewhere, maybe doing a series of

          7  his or her buildings, but there is not any planning.

          8

          9                 Is there some discussion along what

         10  Yvette Clarke talked about, about maybe matching

         11  your lack of hot spots, your dead spots, to where

         12  there is coverage, but at the same time not falling

         13  into the trap, which is what we are in now is, the

         14  industry just calling anybody they can find in the

         15  neighborhood.

         16                 That is the process now.  Is there

         17  some thought to do it differently?

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  To the extent you are

         19  outlining a process that is part of the

         20  transactional relationship, the Department, my guess

         21  is, most of the regulatory agencies would not

         22  necessarily be part of it.

         23                 It might be a question you would pose

         24  to the carriers a little bit later on.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  We posed it
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          2  to the carriers already, okay.

          3                 All right, thank you Madam Chair.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

          5  Our final questions from the Administration are

          6  going to be from Council member Stewart.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          8                 I have some simple questions.  Let us

          9  go back to the, those, what do we call them, stacks,

         10  or what do we call them?

         11  We call them antennas, all right.

         12                 Do you need a permit to erect those

         13  antennas?

         14                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  If you do

         16  need a permit, is it the same permit that, do you

         17  also need a permit to erect the satellite dish also?

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  It is not regulated in

         19  the same way that these cell antennas are, but to

         20  the extent that it is a structure, it is subject to

         21  the Building Codes requirements for, filing

         22  requirements for structures.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So, all

         24  those dishes that I see across the City, you are

         25  saying that they were supposed to have permits?
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          2                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, I did not say that.

          3  I said, I think it is going to depend on the precise

          4  design of an installation, as to whether it is

          5  required to have a permit.  I do not know that I

          6  would be in a position to answer the question

          7  generically.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

          9  I feel like I am going back in college where we

         10  attend physics classes, and to know what the

         11  emissions, and what it is all about, the wave and

         12  so, the effect has to do with quality and quantity.

         13  Now, you have here, it says cell phones or the

         14  waves, if you want to put it that way, or the

         15  frequency, quantity and quality, fits somewhere in

         16  the line where we have microwave.

         17                 Do you know of any studies in the

         18  literature that we have to deal with microwave, that

         19  you can compare it?

         20                 MS. LEIGHTON:  My understanding, it

         21  is just below the microwave range, so it is

         22  somewhere between, it is considered somewhere

         23  between radio and microwaves, and there are studies

         24  in the literature on microwaves.  We actually have

         25  not reviewed those but there is literature on that,
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          2  as well, thanks.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

          4  you are saying that there is literature on microwave

          5  but to the extent that it is bad, it is negative, I

          6  want to compare it.  That is the closest one we can

          7  think about.  I want to compare it in terms of

          8  effect of people because the microwave it is even

          9  much more stable.  It is there, it is in the house,

         10  it is there and it is being used frequently.  In

         11  today's economy it is being used very frequently,

         12  and I want to know if there is any studies to show

         13  the negative effect, so that I can say, "Well, if

         14  microwave produces that type of negative effect, the

         15  cell phones which falls in the same category, same

         16  level in terms of frequency, quantity, and so on,

         17  that it will create the same type of negative

         18  effect".

         19                 MS. LEIGHTON:  I am sorry is I was

         20  not clear about this but there are studies on radio

         21  frequencies, there is just not studies that we saw

         22  on the towers.

         23                 So, on the base stations themselves,

         24  but there are studies on the health effects of radio

         25  frequencies.  So, they can be looked at, those data
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          2  can be looked at, which is what we looked at.  We

          3  actually, I actually did not review the literature

          4  specifically on microwaves and higher.

          5                 So, we could look at that but we did

          6  look at the radio frequencies.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you did

          8  look at the, but you did not look to see the

          9  negative effect?

         10                 MS. LEIGHTON:  Yes, and that is what

         11  we were finding that from what the studies we saw,

         12  was that there was really no consistent effect that

         13  showed an adverse health effect from radio

         14  frequencies.  That is the literature we reviewed,

         15  that is what it showed, but they were not

         16  specifically on cell phone towers, they were on

         17  radio frequencies in general, and those studies

         18  showed that there is real no consistent effect that

         19  we can see on health, in terms of cancer, or

         20  neurologic effects, or reproductive effects, or

         21  other effects.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And, I want

         23  to go back. You specifically said that the FCC, they

         24  have specific laws that prohibit you from trying to

         25  regulate that. Isn't that true?  And, how can we get
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          2  around that, if even we wanted to put something into

          3  place?

          4                 MR. CONJEMI:  I do not think we can.

          5  When it comes to RF emissions, I do not think we

          6  can.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So, what you

          8  are saying now is that the proposed law in itself--.

          9                 MR. CONJEMI:  No, Council member

         10  Vallone's bill does not fall into the area which

         11  would lead to pre- emption.

         12                 It simply a bill that would allow a

         13  tracking, a separate categorization, that is

         14  information that folks may want to have separately,

         15  and that is what the bill would accomplish.  That we

         16  would be permitted to do.

         17                 Tinkering with, or having different

         18  standards than the FCC, has with regard to

         19  environmental impact or RF exposure, I believe we

         20  would not be able to do.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         22  thank you.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you

         24  very much, thank you all very much for your

         25  testimony.
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          2                 We are next going to call up a panel.

          3    We have four panels scheduled after this.

          4                 The first panel is going to be Ron

          5  Petersen of Bell Labs., Laura Altschul, I apologize,

          6  from T- Mobile, and Michelle Adams who is going to

          7  testify first because of a time constraint, the

          8  Executive Director of the Association for a Better

          9  New York.

         10                 This panel will be followed by, so be

         11  on deck, so to speak, Jason Babbie of NYPIRG, John

         12  Campos and Evie Hantzopoulos, I apologize, from the

         13  Astoria Neighborhood Coalition, and Glenn

         14  Encababian, a resident of Astoria.

         15                 We are going to, for the non-

         16  Administration part of the hearing, which is the

         17  whole rest of the hearing, have a three minute, per

         18  person time clock.

         19                 So, if Ms. Adams would start, we

         20  could get this panel going.  Great, thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 If anyone who testifies has copies of

         23  their testimony, please give it to the Sergeants,

         24  they will distribute it.

         25                 If you were a witness who had spoken
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          2  to staff prior to the hearing, and were kind of

          3  scheduled in advance, we still need you to sign a

          4  slip with the Sergeant- At- Arms for our record. So,

          5  if you have not done that, please do that.  Go right

          6  ahead.

          7                 MS. ADAMS:  Thank you.  Chairwoman

          8  Quinn, and other distinguished Committee members, my

          9  name is Michelle Adams, and I am the Executive

         10  Director of the Association for a better New York,

         11  known as ABNY to most all of you.

         12                 I am grateful today for the

         13  opportunity to address all of you.  I am the first

         14  to testify on behalf of the New York Wireless Access

         15  Coalition, and many more will follow me later this

         16  afternoon.

         17                 Due to a prior commitment, I must

         18  leave after my remarks but I would welcome any

         19  questions from the Committee members and please feel

         20  free to call my office at 212- 370- 5800 for

         21  follow up questions or comment.

         22                 On behalf of ABNY's 300 members, and

         23  our Chairman Bill Rouden (phonetic), we are

         24  committed to advocating for a robust wireless

         25  infrastructure, to ensure New Yorkers have the best
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          2  service available.

          3                 We appreciate the opportunity to

          4  speak with members of the City Council today about

          5  the importance of wireless service in New York City.

          6                 In the last decade, wireless

          7  communications have changed the way New Yorkers live

          8  and work.  In a city of eight and a half million

          9  people, there are 10 1/2 million wireless phone

         10  subscribers, and that number is growing every day.

         11  Like the majority of people in this room, New

         12  Yorkers use their wireless phones to stay connected

         13  with family, business, 311, and to call 911, in the

         14  event of an emergency.

         15                 As wireless phones and data devices

         16  have become an integral part of our daily lives, we

         17  simply expect that they will work properly whenever

         18  and where ever.  In order for New York City to

         19  remain a world class city that is competitive with

         20  other city's the necessary state of the art

         21  infrastructure, such as wireless antenna must be

         22  placed throughout the City, including residential

         23  areas.

         24                 A number of my colleagues are going

         25  to testify later today about the significant role
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          2  wireless technology plays in the way New Yorkers

          3  live and work.  While I do not want to steal their

          4  lines in advance, I would like to mention two

          5  articles that underscore how important the wireless

          6  medium is to business and safety.

          7                 The April 25th addition of the Sunday

          8  New York Times featured a story of a proposed plan

          9  for a wireless telecommunications systems for Lower

         10  Manhattan that will ensure computers and phones

         11  remain connected with the rest of the world in the

         12  event of a major disruption.  Gone would be the

         13  complete dependence upon fiber- optic cables or

         14  copper wires to carry vital data and voice

         15  communications, not only through New York, but

         16  globally, as well.

         17                 Jordon Silbert (phonetic) who will be

         18  testifying later on from the Alliance for Downtown

         19  New York, and a colleague of mine, Marilyn Davenport

         20  (phonetic), from the Real Estate Board of New York

         21  will elaborate more on this in their individual

         22  testimony.

         23                 Also, the New York Times reported,

         24  recently, that wireless telecommunication has become

         25  an integral part of law enforcement and protecting
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          2  victims of crime.  Project Hopeline, a program that

          3  provides cell phones --

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you could

          5  sum up please.

          6                 MS. ADAMS:  Yes, I just want to say

          7  in sum, that we need to be able to provide reliable

          8  coverage to fill current dead spots, and to keep New

          9  York City on the competitive, cutting edge with

         10  other cities across the country and the world.

         11                 I would like to thank you for your

         12  time today.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you

         14  very much, and apologize for you staying probably a

         15  little longer than your schedule actually allowed.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 Go right ahead, Laura, you are from

         18  T- Mobile, correct?

         19                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  I am going to defer to

         20  Mr. Petersen to go first.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Oh, so you

         22  will go last? Okay, no problem.

         23                 MR. PETERSEN:  Yes, my name is Ron

         24  Petersen.  I am a former employee of Bell

         25  Laboratories.  I worked there for 40 years, the last
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          2  30 years as a member of the Environmental Health and

          3  Safety Center, where I managed the Wireless and

          4  Optical Technology Safety Department.  My group had

          5  corporate responsibility for all radio frequency

          6  safety issues.  To ensure that products and systems

          7  manufactured by what was Western Electric, then

          8  became Lucent Technologies, was safe, one of the

          9  things we have done from the very beginning was make

         10  measurements around various systems, such as

         11  cellular antennas, such as the ones on the

         12  photograph back here.

         13                 To keep abreast of the science, I

         14  also actively participated for almost 25 years under

         15  committees that developed the safety guidelines upon

         16  which the FCC guidelines are based.  I now chair

         17  that committee, which is in the process of revising

         18  the 1991 standard, and while Council Member Vallone

         19  pointed out that the existing standards are based on

         20  data published before 1986, the new standard is

         21  going be based on studies that were published up

         22  until the beginning of this year.

         23                 The bottom line conclusion from my

         24  committee, and the National Council on Radiation

         25  Protection, which is another committee I chair, is
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          2  that the current safety guidelines provide adequate

          3  safety.  Provided that they are being met, and the

          4  exposure does not exceed these limits, then there is

          5  no real reason for any public concern.

          6                 It is not only these two committees

          7  that come to this conclusion, during the last four

          8  years there has been a number of expert panels

          9  throughout the year that have carefully reviewed all

         10  of the scientific literature, much of it pertaining

         11  to cell phones, and frequencies used by cell phones,

         12  and come to pretty much the same conclusion.

         13                 The most recent was published by a

         14  committee of the National Council of the National

         15  Radiological Protection Board, in the United

         16  Kingdom, which concluded that the standards that are

         17  being now mandated throughout the European

         18  communities, which are essentially the same as the

         19  FCC safety guidelines, are adequate to protect

         20  public health.  Now, this standard is, and this

         21  conclusion is based on a lot of new science.

         22                 I think, since I only have a few

         23  minutes, in conclusion what I would like to say is

         24  that instead of the Health Department embarking on a

         25  very complex epidemiology study, to try an assess
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          2  any risk to persons living near base stations, such

          3  as this, where the exposures may be to everything

          4  else but the base station, from cell phones, from

          5  leakage from microwave ovens, from broadcast

          6  radiation, that it would be far better for them to

          7  follow the literature, follow these conclusions of

          8  these expert panels, read the reports, and I would

          9  certainly invite the members of the Health

         10  Department to participate in the Standards

         11  Committees that I chair, which really brings

         12  together all the worlds experts.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Honorable Chairwoman

         15  Quinn, and Committee members, my name is Laura

         16  Altschul.  I am the Director of National Siting

         17  Policy for T- Mobile USA, and I am located at our

         18  corporate headquarters in Bellevue, Washington,

         19  which is where I reside, and work very closely with

         20  our New York market engineering team.

         21                 T- Mobile is please to have the

         22  opportunity to present this testimony.

         23                 Our purpose today is to help the

         24  Council understand that while we believe the

         25  initiatives being considered are well intentioned,
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          2  they have the potential, depending on the form

          3  ultimately taken, to threaten the City's wireless

          4  communication systems and undermine the advances New

          5  York City has made in telecommunications to date.

          6                 We will take this opportunity to

          7  correct the misinformation in Resolutions Number 76

          8  and 88, and Introduction Number 149.

          9                 Basically, there are several inherent

         10  assumptions made in these measures that are

         11  incorrect.  Most importantly, there is an assumption

         12  that the number of sites needed in the City create a

         13  reckless proliferation of base stations; and second,

         14  that base stations create negative health effects.

         15                 We are sensitive to the Council

         16  members and residents concerns, and are not opposed

         17  to prudent initiatives. However, those initiatives,

         18  which are guided by fear and the desire of some to

         19  slow the deployment of wireless infrastructure, will

         20  do a grave disservice to the City's residents and in

         21  no way whatsoever, address their legitimate

         22  concerns.

         23                 Allow me to first address

         24  Introduction 149.  As proposed, this bill would

         25  require the compilation of a comprehensive list
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          2  pinpointing every wireless telecommunications

          3  rooftop location in the City.  In fact, the language

          4  could be interpreted to mean every site, since the

          5  Introduction says, "At minimum".

          6                 This list, in essence, would be road

          7  map showing the exact locations of the City's

          8  wireless communications infrastructure;  a road map

          9  to what is, in the language of today, "critical

         10  infrastructure".  It would be detrimental for the

         11  City to enforce a list.

         12                 The Department of Homeland Security

         13  has recognized that identifying critical

         14  infrastructure makes it easier for terrorists to

         15  pinpoint areas of vulnerability.

         16                 Under the Critical Infrastructure

         17  Information Protection Act, there are procedures for

         18  protecting vital information, and the federal

         19  government is currently looking into having this

         20  confidentiality protection applied to wireless

         21  facilities and outage identification.  If the a

         22                 bove bill were passed in its present

         23  form, the exposure of wireless infrastructure to

         24  potential threats, and the resultant hesitancy on

         25  the part of property owners to enter into agreements
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          2  with wireless carriers, would be the unintended

          3  outcome of this honorable Council's action.

          4                 At a time when phone usage is growing

          5  at unprecedented rates, and when roughly 10,000`911'

          6  emergency calls a day are being made from wireless

          7  phones in the City alone, infrastructure build out

          8  and landlords' involvement in this must not be

          9  compromised.

         10                 If I could have just an extra minute

         11  here, and I will sum up.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, if you

         13  would sum up now, that would be great.

         14                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Okay, let me sum up

         15  with this.

         16                 T- Mobil respectfully requests that

         17  the Council not pass Introduction Number 149, as

         18  written.  This law would be the weak link in the

         19  chain of security measures the City has labored to

         20  establish.  The Resolutions, as written, do not

         21  address the interests of the majority of the City's

         22  citizens and businesses.

         23                 On behalf of T- Mobile, I thank you

         24  for your attention and your consideration.  We are

         25  very committed to working with the Council to find
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          2  modifications that are a fair and balanced solution

          3  for everyone in the City.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.  I

          6  just have a couple of questions for either of you.

          7                 Why don't I just start with you

          8  Laura, and your final statement.

          9                 So, what are some of your ideas about

         10  what would be the appropriately fair and balanced,

         11  if you think is this is not the right way to go,

         12  what are some ideas about what would be?

         13                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  I think one thing is

         14  to certainly clean up the language in the

         15  Resolutions and the Introduction.  I think it is

         16  very detrimental for this City, as well as other

         17  city's around the country to approach health

         18  effects, and the very legitimate questions that

         19  people are asking about them.  But, to approach them

         20  from a position of creating an adverse relationship

         21  between the community and the wireless carriers.

         22  So, that is certainly is one very serious concern

         23  that we have, that needs to be cleaned up.

         24                 There is a lot of science out there

         25  that, and a lot of studies, and I think that the
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          2  City needs to look at those before it starts

          3  investing in its own study.  And, then determine if

          4  the City needs to make that kind of investment.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  What are some

          6  of the independent studies that you know of?  And,

          7  by independent I mean I mean, neither funded by the

          8  carriers or necessarily a community group in a

          9  neighborhood that had a project that they were

         10  against.

         11                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Okay, I am certain

         12  that Mr. Petersen can add to this but one in

         13  particular is the World Health Organization (WHO).

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         15                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  And, with all due

         16  respect to Councilman Vallone's quote of WHO, the

         17  full quote from a study that WHO has just been

         18  working on, and we work very closely with T- Mobil

         19  International, on this study and on its impact.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes.

         21                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  WHO has most recently

         22  determined that "with more and more research data

         23  available, it has become increasingly unlikely that

         24  exposure to electromagnetic fields (EMF) constitutes

         25  a serious health hazard.  Nevertheless, some
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          2  uncertainty remains, and knowing this, there is

          3  sound public policy ground not to change current

          4  limits.  There is no sign of urgency to act before

          5  World Health Organization concludes their EMF

          6  research agenda in early 2007".

          7                 I think it is very important to pay

          8  attention to that Organizations report because where

          9  WHO started out on this was a study of, since there

         10  is far more base stations in Europe, as has been

         11  indicated here earlier, than there are in the United

         12  States right now, and WHO really focused its study

         13  on Europe and is also going to be looking at a study

         14  in Canada.  I think that it is important since WHO

         15  started from a place of;  there is a health hazard

         16  out there and we have to address it and have come to

         17  this conclusion that it is something valuable for

         18  the City to pay attention to.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You, oh I am

         20  sorry, did you want to add something, Sir?

         21                 MR. PETERSEN:  No, I think it is a

         22  real problem.  I think industry sort of gets a bad

         23  rap because they do have the money to fund studies,

         24  but most of these studies, or a lot of these studies

         25  are funded through a blind trust and they really
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          2  have no control over anything, other than the purse

          3  strings.

          4                 While at Bell Labs, we funded a

          5  number of studies, and it was you pay your money and

          6  you take your changes.  With a university, they

          7  provide a grant proposal and we fund it, and have no

          8  idea, we hope we know how it is going to come out,

          9  but if comes out to the contrary, there is no

         10  restrictions on publication or anything else.  And,

         11  I think most of industry is responsible and operates

         12  that way.

         13                 The only people who can fund studies

         14  are the government and industry.  There is no big

         15  pot of money that is out there for academics and

         16  researchers to dig into to do what they feel like

         17  they should be doing.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, then,

         19  kind of based on what you said, you think it is not

         20  inappropriate then for government to do a study,

         21  which kind of makes a little bit with what your

         22  colleague was saying.

         23                 MR. PETERSEN:  Well, they are for

         24  example, the Food and Drug Administration funded a

         25  study to try and replicate some earlier studies that
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          2  found effects and they, actually, undertook the

          3  study and did not find the same effects.  So, some

          4  of the federal agencies are doing this already, but

          5  not many of them.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  In your

          7  testimony, Laura, you mentioned specifically siting

          8  concern around the word`minimum', if that was

          9  removed, would that address your concern or that was

         10  just an example of your concern?

         11                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  It is an example.  A

         12  serious example.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  The thing

         14  about the security issue, as if to say, I am a

         15  little uncomfortable with that because you can see

         16  them.  Do you know what I mean?  So, it does not

         17  seem like, I guess what you were saying that somehow

         18  the creation of this list would make it easier for

         19  people, if they got their hands on the list, to

         20  target these, let us accept for a second that that

         21  is something people would want to do, they are not

         22  hidden, so it seems like it would not be that hard

         23  to find out where a lot of them were anyway.  I

         24  mean, you said a lot that I think was thought

         25  provoking, I just had to say I did not think that
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          2  was not the most compelling part of what you said to

          3  me at all because it seems like not that much is

          4  getting added by that and, in the safety sense,

          5  since they are identifiable, as opposed to if they

          6  were underground, or whatever.

          7                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Right, and if I could

          8  just briefly address that.  I think, actually, you

          9  are making a point that the carriers, and certainly

         10  T- Mobile make, you can see these.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         12                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  And, the buildings are

         13  listed, people can take the address, as I

         14  understand, and they can go to a City Department,

         15  and they can look up the building owner.  The City

         16  does not need to create an additional list when it

         17  is already out there. The issue about terrorism and

         18  homeland security is that this is not the carrier

         19  saying that there is a concern about terrorists and

         20  finding out where our infrastructure is, and having

         21  an ability to destroy our infrastructure, as we have

         22  already experienced here in New York City.  This is

         23  the Homeland Security Department saying that they

         24  recognize that they need to work more closely with

         25  the city's to protect the wireless base stations,
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          2  and where everything is located.  I think that is

          3  very important, and I know it is a concern here in

          4  the City, and it is something that I think the City

          5  is going to be asked by the federal government to

          6  participate in, and help protect the networks that

          7  are out there.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I mean, I

          9  think there is a host of reasons why people want

         10  there to be a list.  I am not sure that your

         11  response, kind of, erases that need for a risk.

         12                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Yes.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And, I still,

         14  the security thing I think is a little, I do not

         15  think it is black and white on that point.

         16                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Yes.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.  Next,

         18  we are going to hear our questions from Council

         19  member Vallone.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 Ms. Ahern (sic), your testimony says

         23  that these initiatives guided by fear and the desire

         24  to slow deployment.

         25                 They are guided by me right now, and
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          2  let me tell you what guides me.  The quest for

          3  knowledge, not fear.  Not any desire to slow the

          4  development, but knowledge.  There are only two

          5  things on the table right now.  Knowledge of where

          6  these cell phone towers are, and knowledge of their

          7  health effects.  That is it.  That may be it, at the

          8  end of the day, it may not, but that is what we are

          9  discussing right now.

         10                 Your testimony is that you oppose a

         11  list, you oppose the City of having knowledge, and

         12  the people having knowledge of where these things

         13  are because of terrorist concerns?

         14                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I am Chair

         16  of the Public Safety Committee.  That is absurd, to

         17  think that terrorists are going to get some list,

         18  and go onto every building and every neighborhood,

         19  and hit these cell phone towers.  That is absurd.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If we can,

         21  okay, for the rest of the hearing, we should try to

         22  refrain on booing, clapping, sighing, gasping, let

         23  us just try to keep it a little bit more

         24  professional.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Can I keep
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          2  talking though?

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You can

          4  actually talk.  If he clapped, I could not do

          5  anything about it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  There is

          7  some legitimate concerns which I have discussed with

          8  you and others regarding cell phone service, and 911

          9  systems, and things like that but terrorism, I mean,

         10  I have never seen such a blatant attempt to scare

         11  the public, scare the public away from knowledge

         12  which they are entitled to.  That is outrageous.

         13                 Let us go onto the second bill, the

         14  independent study by the City.  I am not sure if you

         15  touched upon that because your testimony was cut

         16  short.  Do you oppose an independent study also?

         17                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  I think that if the

         18  carriers were involved in working with the community

         19  in the City to craft what that independent study was

         20  really trying to, what type of knowledge was being

         21  sought with that independent study, I think that is

         22  something that, at least, T- Mobile, I cannot speak

         23  for the other carriers, would be interested in

         24  participating in.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Maybe you
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          2  misunderstood my question, or the term`independent'.

          3                 Most of the studies we have now,

          4  unfortunately, are all commissioned, and it is a

          5  good thing that you are commissioning studies, but

          6  they are commissioned by your industry.  That is why

          7  I want an independent study that the phone companies

          8  are not involved in.

          9                 Would you support that?

         10                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  That the carriers

         11  would have no involvement in the kinds of questions

         12  that are being asked?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  That would,

         14  they would have whatever involvement that the

         15  independent study thinks they should have.

         16                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Well, again, let me

         17  state that T- Mobile does not support the City

         18  promoting an adversarial position for the carriers

         19  to be in.

         20                 The carriers, as Mr. Petersen has

         21  said, have helped pay for the studies that have been

         22  commissioned.  Where else is the money going to come

         23  from?  The carriers have an earnest and sincere

         24  interest in making sure that we number one, meet the

         25  FCC standards with how we build our sites, if we do
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          2  not, it could create problems and it could cause us

          3  to loose our licenses.

          4                 So, Councilman Vallone, I, on behalf

          5  of T- Mobile, I have a difficult time saying

          6  anything that does not have some carrier input would

          7  be fully supported.  Now, if the City is going to

          8  have a study, what we would want to do is, is make

          9  sure that the, I mean if the results of that study

         10  were such that it showed that there were adverse

         11  effects, we certainly would want to know that, so

         12  that we could all take, use our means to remedy

         13  those situations.

         14                 I do not know how else to answer your

         15  question, other than to tell you that.  And, I do

         16  want to say, just for a minute.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Can I just

         18  jump in for one second on that point, and interrupt

         19  Council member Vallone.

         20                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Sure.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, is it,

         22  based on what your were just saying about not

         23  wanting there to be an independent, completely

         24  independent study, and by completely independent,

         25  what I mean, and I think this is what Council member
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          2  Vallone means, one that was, without the input of

          3  the proponents or the opponents, so, okay, I hear

          4  that.

          5                 Is it fair to say then, you would not

          6  want there to be any studies, you do not want any

          7  studies done that the carriers do not have input on,

          8  but would you also not want there to be any studies

          9  done that the opponents, for lack of a better word,

         10  do not have input on?

         11                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Yes, I think that if

         12  it is a fair, clean study, and there have been

         13  thousands of them conducted, then the carries, as

         14  well as the citizens who are opposing cell sites,

         15  would be very interested in those results.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, no, no.

         17  That was not my question.

         18                 My question was, you are saying you

         19  do not want a study done that the carriers do not

         20  have input into developing and et cetera.

         21                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  That is correct.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, then, is

         23  it also true that you would not want a study done

         24  that the opponents, for lack of a better word, I

         25  apologize for that, but just to shorthand it, so you
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          2  would also not want a study done that the opponents,

          3  basically what you are saying, I am picturing a

          4  table, right, and you are saying the scientists who

          5  are doing the study have to be at the table, the

          6  carriers have to be at the table.  To develop it

          7  right, hire the technicians, are you also saying

          8  that in your opinion, the opponents have to be at

          9  the table or it is not a survey, a study that should

         10  be done?

         11                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Yes.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, and the

         13  studies that you have been a part of, that the

         14  carriers have been a part of to date, were they

         15  always crafted with the opponents at the table, with

         16  the scientists and the carriers?

         17                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  I honestly, I have

         18  never participated in those kinds of studies,

         19  perhaps Mr. Petersen can address that.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Do you know?

         21                 MR. PETERSEN:  Yes, I was involved in

         22  a health study at the New Jersey Department of

         23  Health, undertook up in Vernon, New Jersey where

         24  there is a large number of earth station satellite

         25  antennas up there, and there was a claim that there
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          2  was a higher incidence of cancer amongst the

          3  residents up there.  The study was done by the

          4  Health Department but--.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON:  I am sorry, I do

          6  not mean to interrupt, I would like to hear about

          7  the Jersey study but I have just interrupted

          8  Councilman Vallone.  I just want to know, the

          9  studies that you have cited before, were the

         10  opponents at the table as well as the carriers?

         11                 MR. PETERSEN:  Well, in this Health

         12  Department study, yes.  They had representatives of

         13  the opponents, of the Health Department, of the

         14  Department of Environmental Protection, and

         15  everybody who had a stake in it was involved.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  How about the

         17  other ones you referenced?

         18                 MR. PETERSEN:  Well, the other ones

         19  are, I mean, there are studies, and then there are

         20  studies.  If you are talking, what I visualize you

         21  wanting to do, is actually study the health of

         22  people living near base stations or clusters of base

         23  stations.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, or

         25  working.
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          2                 MR. PETERSEN:  Yes, I think you

          3  certainly need expertise from the carriers, and from

          4  a lot of other people because that is an incredibly

          5  complex study.

          6                 Like someone from the Health

          7  Department pointed out before, in order to do such a

          8  study, you have to find people who are not exposed,

          9  and compare their--.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         11                 MR. PETERSEN:  And, how do you do

         12  that?  I made measurements on the International

         13  Ladies Garment Workers Union Building a while back.

         14  The highest levels there were not from the base

         15  stations mounted on the side of the building, but

         16  from the antennas, at that time, on the World Trade

         17  Center and the Empire State.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         19                 MR. PETERSEN:  So, everybody is sort

         20  of in this menu of RF, and it is really hard to find

         21  people who are not.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you,

         23                 Thank you Council member, sorry about

         24  that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Madam Chair,
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          2  without you, this hearing does not happen.  You can

          3  interrupt me any time you want.

          4                 I am just a council member, I do not

          5  what, how to do scientific studies but I know when

          6  they are needed and I know that when they should be

          7  done.

          8                 I think I got the answer to my

          9  questions.  You do oppose knowledge of where they

         10  exist.  You do oppose the independent study, unless

         11  you are involved, basically.

         12                 You said that I misquoted the WHO.

         13  Your quote was that, you say I incorrectly quote

         14  them and say that your quote, "With more and more

         15  research available, it has become increasingly

         16  unlikely that exposure constitutes a health hazard,

         17  and nevertheless some uncertainty remains".

         18                 My quote, "although it is unlikely

         19  that exposure will lead to cancer, there are gaps in

         20  the knowledge that need to be filled".

         21                 Saying exactly the same thing, so I

         22  take exception to you saying that I misquoted them.

         23  Regarding the World Health Organization, we should

         24  listen to them, are you aware that the World Health

         25  Organization is presently urging against placing the
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          2  stations near schools and playgrounds, until there

          3  is further evidence to support their safety?

          4                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  I have not seen that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I am not

          6  going to go on but I do want to say, I mean, I have

          7  been harsh on you, and the reason I have is because

          8  you are the only one with the guts to show up. You

          9  are the only company that is here, that I know of.

         10  So, and you have been responsive in the past, you

         11  have been to my office, not you in particular but

         12  your company many, many times, anytime we have

         13  asked, so, thank you for coming down and testifying.

         14                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Thank you for

         15  recognizing that.  I do just want to say one thing

         16   --

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just want

         18  to add that T- Mobile did also meet with myself,

         19  with my office, personally, and the Health Committee

         20  staff, which we very much appreciate, as well.

         21                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  Thank you very much.

         22  Well, I hope that you see that as a sign that we are

         23  not trying to instill an inflammatory situation

         24  here, and the reference to the terrorists, that does

         25  not come from the carriers.  That really, truly does
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          2  come from Homeland Security.  We are in almost daily

          3  meetings in D.C., with our D.C. Government Affairs

          4  people.  So, it is never T- Mobiles intent to

          5  establish anything but a situation in the City,

          6  where we are seen as a partner with the community,

          7  as well as with the Council members, and thank you

          8  for that recognition of T- Mobile.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We have one

         10  final set of questions.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I will try to

         12  be quick.  I just wanted to find out, Mr. Petersen

         13  had mentioned in his testimony that the location of

         14  each base is determined by two different needs on

         15  the part of the system, one of which is to provide

         16  adequate coverage, and the second is to provide

         17  adequate capacity.

         18                 MR. PETERSEN:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I am trying to

         20  understand, when is coverage and capacity adequate

         21  to the level where everyone is receiving service?

         22                 MR. PETERSEN:  Yes, different

         23  carriers use different criteria but it really

         24  relates to the number of calls that are dropped when

         25  a person starts talking on a phone, and all of a
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          2  sudden their call is dropped as they move about a

          3  little bit.  That would be inadequate coverage, and

          4  something would have to be done about that.

          5                 I am not sure exactly what each

          6  company uses as criteria.  And, as more people are

          7  added to the system, sometimes you cannot get a call

          8  up because all the channels are occupied. That would

          9  be inadequate capacity.

         10                 So, what happens is the cells are

         11  made smaller, and sub- divided so that more people

         12  can now communicate with the base station.  But, by

         13  so doing, it means installing more and more

         14  antennas.  By making the cells smaller, it means

         15  reducing the power, so the overall background level

         16  does not really change very much.  Whether you have

         17  a single tower covering a five mile radius, or

         18  whether you have a small, well antennas are not

         19  small, but one base station covering a few blocks,

         20  the signal strength is pretty much the same

         21  everywhere.

         22                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  And, I could add to

         23  that, as a carrier representative.

         24                 We look at a number of factors.  Our

         25  engineers go out and drive the area, and test what
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          2  the signal quality is.  We have customer

          3  satisfaction surveys that are frequently taken, that

          4  determine if the customers are satisfied with the

          5  quality of service that is being provided in their

          6  area.  We have`trouble' tickets that are sent in

          7  through customer care, when people have a dropped

          8  call or a blocked call or they do not have any

          9  service in their area.

         10                 There is a company called Telethea

         11  (phonetic) that all the carriers use, and what they

         12  do, is they go out into markets across the United

         13  States, including here in New York City, and they

         14  rate the quality level of the coverage that is

         15  provided.  We also listen to where customers, to

         16  customers and where they want to be using their

         17  phones, which is exactly what has lead us to this

         18  issue today of, "Well, what do we do about finding a

         19  way to provide service in residential areas that

         20  meets everyone's needs"?  And that is the knowledge

         21  that I believe this City is seeking right now.

         22                 Then the final point is that for any

         23  E911, we have a mandate from the FCC that by 2005,

         24  we have to provide location based services, working

         25  with the communities emergency services people and
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          2  agencies, to be able to locate within a very, very

          3  specific area exactly where that call is coming

          4  from, from a wireless phone.  Unless we have enough

          5  sites to, what is called triangulate the call, we

          6  cannot get the exact location, and unfortunately

          7  here in New York City, you know there was a very

          8  recent tragic accident where the boys, the young man

          9  died, they tried to use their phone and they could

         10  not be located.

         11                 So, E911 is a very important

         12  consideration for us, and for the City, that plays

         13  into how we make those determinations about where we

         14  need the sites.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And, as far as

         16  the World Health Organization, and its study and it

         17  being conducted in Europe, I am trying to understand

         18  if their study as it progresses, is there a set

         19  number of base stations that already exist to

         20  determine what their adequate service, if they reach

         21  their adequate service level?

         22                 MR. PETERSEN:  Yes, I cannot really

         23  speak for the carriers in Europe as to what, is that

         24  what the question is?  The World Health Organization

         25  is really just trying to pull together studies and
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          2  ensure that studies are funded to address questions

          3  that are still lingering, and as a result, they are

          4  having meeting throughout the world and trying to

          5  fill these gaps in knowledge.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Mr. Petersen,

          7  I guess what I am trying to understand is when is

          8  enough, enough?

          9                 MR. PETERSEN:  Oh, okay.

         10                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  That is a very good

         11  question. Today in the United States, and you may

         12  not like this answer, but today in the United

         13  States, I do not think that we can experience enough

         14  being enough.

         15                 If people stopped buying cell phones,

         16  and if they stopped using cell phones with all the

         17  new technology that is available for wireless

         18  devices with data transmission, streaming video,

         19  camera phones, and voice, if people stopped all

         20  that, then we could probably give you a measurement

         21  of when enough is enough. But, with the expediential

         22  growth of the industry and of peoples desires to use

         23  those Blackberries, and everything else that is out

         24  there, and that is coming, the carriers truly cannot

         25  tell you when enough will be enough.
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          2                 That is why, I mean, some city's ask

          3  for, San Francisco as an example, ask for a master

          4  plan, and I used to do build out work,

          5  infrastructure work in California.  We could not

          6  give a true master plan, a five- year plan.  We had

          7  no idea where we were going to need to be able to

          8  provide that service, and the same situation exists

          9  today.  We just cannot tell you when enough is

         10  enough.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And, in your

         12  expertise, do you feel that when, in both your

         13  expertise, is the City right now because there is no

         14  process in place, it is more like if you need a

         15  structural permit to place these base stations that

         16  there is an urban planning method being used,

         17  applied, or this is just a very fast procedure, you

         18  know you place your permit, we do not know what the

         19  permit is for, you place your base stations, and lo

         20  and behold ten years from now in one residential

         21  area you will have a hundred of these base stations

         22  versus another area where there is probably two?

         23                 MS. ALTSCHUL:  The, I am trying to

         24  figure out the easiest way to answer your question.

         25                 First let me clarify, that there is a
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          2  process within the City that the carriers abide by.

          3  We do not just take a napkin and write on it, like

          4  okay, we want a site at the corner of X and X, and

          5  hand it in and then we build the site overnight.

          6                 We have to abide by submitting a full

          7  set of plans, exact location of where the site is

          8  going to be, exactly what we intend to do at that

          9  site.  We have to go through structural engineer

         10  stamped engineering reviews.  We, the architects

         11  have to help us develop the plans, and until we

         12  satisfy the City on the structural and construction

         13  requirements, we do not get a permit. So, there is a

         14  process that we have to go through.               With

         15  respect to, there will be a cluster, as that word

         16  has been used here before, of sites in one area, and

         17  no sites in another area, and I think, one of the

         18  council members asked a question earlier about how

         19  minority communities, neighborhoods are treated

         20  versus other neighborhoods, we build our sites where

         21  there is a need to build those sites.  And, that is

         22  the answer.

         23                 It is very important, and I can tell

         24  you, T- Mobile's build plan for this year, our focus

         25  is what we call`In Fill', we are looking to make
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          2  sure that within a city, we have the best possible

          3  service everywhere where people want to use their

          4  phones. And now, and there are some boroughs that do

          5  not have as good a service, as high a quality of

          6  service as some other areas, and we are now

          7  beginning to address building in those areas too, so

          8  that there will not be an imbalance, if you will, of

          9  some people have service and some people do not have

         10  service.  We are tying to improve the service

         11  everywhere.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you all

         15  very much.

         16                 We are going to call up the next

         17  panel, which there is one addition to.

         18                 So, the panel is Jason Babbie, is he

         19  here?  I know he has submitted testimony but he may

         20  have left already, okay.  He is representing NYPIRG,

         21  and they have submitted testimony for the record.

         22  John Campos, and Eve Hantzopoulos, Glenn Encababian,

         23  I am sorry if I am getting your name wrong, and

         24  Whitney North- Seymore Junior (phonetic).

         25                 I am sorry, if somebody has a
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          2  question about when they are signed up to testify

          3  for, they should speak to the staff and the

          4  Sergeants- At- Arms at the table over there.  You

          5  are going to need to speak to the staff over there,

          6  Sir, you are going to need to talk to the staff so

          7  we can get this panel started.

          8                 Whoever would like to begin, go right

          9  ahead.  Just make sure the mic is on, which means

         10  the light is off.

         11                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  Good afternoon,

         12  thank you for allowing me to speak today.

         13                 My name is Evie Hantzopoulos, and I

         14  am with the Astoria Neighborhood Coalition.

         15                 I want to start off by saying that I

         16  am not against cell phones, and I am not against

         17  wireless coverage or access but I am living a big

         18  problem and you see it right there.  Because,

         19  building by building, block by block in New York

         20  City, cellular antenna base stations are being

         21  constructed at a rate where no one can keep track of

         22  it, and there is no thought given to the people who

         23  have to live underneath the shadows of these

         24  structures.

         25                 Every day, when I leave my home, I am
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          2  greeted with a cellular antenna base station that

          3  was put there by T- Mobile, plopped down right in

          4  the middle of my residential street.  I walk a half

          5  a block to get to the subway, there is another

          6  cellular antenna base station by a different

          7  carrier.  I hop on the train, before I even go one

          8  stop, I see two more on the rooftops, and it just

          9  goes on and on as I make my journey to get to work

         10  every day.               No one can tell me how many

         11  there are in New York City.  Not on the City level,

         12  not on the state level, and not the FCC.  No one

         13  because no one is keeping count, and no one has to.Last

         14  August, my neighbors and I did a community mapping

         15  of the antennas, and we found 16 base stations with

         16  approximately nine antennas each, within a ten block

         17  radius of my home.  Now, since last summer, I know

         18  of at least six other ones that have gone up within

         19  the area.  And, this is just by me looking, this is

         20  not scientific.

         21                 That is nearly 200 antennas, all

         22  emitting radiation within my neighborhood, and no

         23  one is monitoring them.  No one is inspecting them,

         24  or even knowing for sure, how many their are.  An

         25  Astoria is not atypical.  Unfortunately, most people
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          2  are not aware of what these look like or the fact

          3  that they are even going up.

          4                 The telecommunications companies tell

          5  us that they need to ensure wireless access, well,

          6  providing access does not mean there should be carte

          7  blanche for the industry to do what they please,

          8  wherever they please.  They tell us that the levels

          9  of radiation that these antennas emit will not harm

         10  us, and is no different than that which we find in

         11  our microwave ovens.  I heard this from T- Mobil

         12  myself.  Well, a microwave oven is enclosed, and I

         13  use it for a few minutes at a time, unlike the

         14  antennas which are exposed and are on 24/7.  And,

         15  while the radiation levels from one set of antennas

         16  may be deemed safe, what about the cumulative levels

         17  from all those 200 antennas in my neighborhood?

         18                 The wireless industry plays upon our

         19  fears of being attacked by terrorists, or victimized

         20  to ensure that no legislation is passed but they

         21  disparage the real concerns of prominent scientists

         22  and just regular people like me who know that no one

         23  can guarantee that the long- term, non- thermal

         24  effects from this radiation is not harmful.  And,

         25  that is what these studies that they were talking
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          2  about do not address.  They are not addressing the

          3  long- term, non- thermal effects which is different.

          4    They want no transparency or civic participation,

          5  and we demand more.

          6                 It is time for my government to get

          7  involved.  I am the working mother of two young

          8  children and I have got enough to deal with in my

          9  life.  But, it is because of my children, and

         10  children are the most vulnerable to this type of

         11  radiation, that I have joined my neighbors in

         12  fighting for what is so obviously wrong.

         13                 If you put the potential health risks

         14  aside, and just look at the process for building

         15  theses structures, you will find that something is

         16  not kosher.  Why is it that if a restaurant wants to

         17  add some tables on the sidewalk public hearings are

         18  held? But, when a radioactive cellular antenna is

         19  constructed, no residents are notified or have any

         20  say in the matter?  And why is it that a Deputy

         21  Commissioner of Buildings exempted these structures

         22  even though he had no authority to do so?

         23                 If I could just sum up.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Please.

         25                 MR. HANTZOPOULOS:  I guess what I
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          2  want to say is, I do not know anyone who would feel

          3  comfortable with these antennas across the street

          4  from them, particularly if they have children, or

          5  they are going right into their windows.  And, over

          6  60 years ago, asbestos was lauded as some kind of

          7  miracle, and in that case, technology out paced the

          8  research to disastrous results.

          9                 Time will tell whether these antennas

         10  will become the asbestos of this century, but in the

         11  meantime, my children, and no one else for that

         12  matter, should be dispensable guinea pigs caught up

         13  in the experiment.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 MR. CAMPOS:  Hi, thank you.

         18                 I would just like to thank Peter

         19  Vallone, Jr. For championing this issue, and I

         20  promised myself that I would not deviate from my

         21  testimony but let me allow some because our previous

         22  speaker, Ms. Altschul, from T- Mobile --

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Could you

         24  just identify yourself for the record?

         25                 MR. CAMPOS:  Okay, my name is John
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          2  Campos.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. CAMPOS:  I am co- founder and a

          5  member of the Astoria Neighborhood Coalition where,

          6  actually, fighting for the responsible siting of

          7  these antennas.

          8                 The reason that we got our coalition

          9  together is that T- Mobile erected a base station

         10  antenna site right next to where myself, and Ms.

         11  Hantzopoulos live.

         12                 The way we found out about it is the

         13  structural plans, which I have here fell into our

         14  neighbors backyard.  What we then discovered, after

         15  researching this issue for thousands of hours, is

         16  that T- Mobile in putting up this site, violated the

         17  FCC's Categorically Excluded Rule.  The

         18  Categorically Excluded Rule has to do with potential

         19  human expose to base station antennas.  This is a

         20  picture of the original installment, which shows

         21  that people had direct access to the antennas.  This

         22  is what the Categorically Excluded Rule has to do

         23  with.  There are hundreds of sites that I have

         24  witnessed around this city, that are in violation of

         25  this rule.  If the antenna site is not over 30 feet,
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          2  it is in violation of this rule.

          3                 Just to give you some background, I

          4  am going to try to give you some of my testimony.

          5                 Over the past year, our coalition has

          6  dedicated thousands of hours to investigating those

          7  regulations.  We have no doubt that there are risks

          8  associated with RF radiation exposure.

          9                 I have compile a packet containing

         10  hundreds of scientific abstracts, linking RF and

         11  electromagnetic fields to adverse health effects.  I

         12  would like to submit this to the Committee.

         13  Included will be, I do not have copies of it today,

         14  is a 450 page document that was researched by the

         15  Environmental Protection Agency of this country,

         16  which links and suggests a link to a host of

         17  maladies, including lymphoma and cancer.  The

         18  problem is, this study never saw the light of day.

         19  This study was squashed.  But, it is out there, and

         20  available.  I found it through the Freedom of

         21  Information Act.  So, there are studies that show

         22  that there are adverse health effects.

         23                 We have heard about the rights of the

         24  wireless providers.  What about the rights of the

         25  people who have to live in these communities?  We
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          2  live and work in the financial, cultural, and

          3  intellectual capital of the world.  We need the

          4  best, safest wireless infrastructure in the world.

          5  We need an infrastructure that will stand the test

          6  of time.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you can

          8  sum up, thanks.

          9                 MR. CAMPOS:  And then just to sum up,

         10  in doing thousands of hours of research, we have

         11  found that there are bonefied concerns.  There are

         12  risks that, that is a definite, and the risks have

         13  been assumed by the citizenry of this City, without

         14  their knowledge, their consent, or input, and we

         15  feel there has to be a balance between our concerns

         16  and this industries growth.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         19  Next witness please.

         20                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Glenn Encababian, I

         21  work with Assemblyman Ruben Diaz, Jr. Up in the

         22  Bronx, and I am a member of Community Board 8,

         23  Education and Public Safety Committee.

         24                 Last year the Department of Education

         25  proposed putting cell phone antennas on the rooftops
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          2  of the public schools for revenue.  The response was

          3  that Assemblyman Ruben Diaz, Jr., and Assemblyman

          4  Jeffrey Dinowitz co- sponsored legislation to

          5  prohibit the placement of cell phone antennas on

          6  school property or school roofs.

          7                 In addition to that, I am just going

          8  to read you a quick list of parent organizations,

          9  and elected officials, whose reactions range from

         10  either questioning the rational behind this, or

         11  being unconditionally opposed to it;

         12                 Congressman Elliot Engel

         13                 Bronx Borough President Adolfo

         14  Carrion, Jr.

         15                 City Council Member Oliver Koppell

         16                 City Council Member Jose Serrano

         17                 State Senator Eric Schneiderman

         18                 State Senator Guy Velella

         19                 Assemblyman Peter Rivera

         20                 Assemblyman Steve Sanders

         21                 Community Board 8, Education

         22  Committee

         23                 Community Board 8, Environmental and

         24  Sanitation Committee

         25                 Community Board 10
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          2                 United Parents Association

          3                 Public School 24, Parents Association

          4                 Public School 81, Parents Association

          5                 MS/HS 141, Parents Association

          6                 Cypress Hills Advocates for Education

          7                 Northwest Bronx Community and Clergy

          8  Coalition, and here is about 200 letters from

          9  parents in just two schools, being unconditionally

         10  opposed to this.

         11                 Since my time is running out, why

         12  would we be scared?

         13                 The United States Environmental

         14  Protection Agency, this is just condensed, says that

         15  the FCC's current exposure guidelines, as well as

         16  those of the Institute of Electrical and Electronic

         17  Engineers, and the International Commission on Non

         18  Ionizing Radiation Protection are thermally- based,

         19  and do not apply to chronic, non- thermal exposure

         20  situations.

         21                 The USEPA says that the

         22  generalization by many, that the guidelines protect

         23  human being from harm by any or all mechanisms is

         24  not justified.

         25                 The United States Food and Drug
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          2  Administration has said, it is not known whether to

          3  what extend, or through what mechanisms lower levels

          4  of radio frequency might cause adverse health

          5  effects, and when asked whether hand- held mobile

          6  phones might be harmful, the U.S. FDA says there is

          7  not enough evidence to know for sure either way.

          8                 Let us hear what the wireless

          9  companies say.  Crown Castle International Corp.,

         10  owners, operators, and managers of wireless

         11  communications sites, in their report to the United

         12  States Security and Exchange Commission, on May 30,

         13  2003, warns investors that they may suffer from

         14  future claims if radio frequency emissions, from

         15  equipment on their sites and towers, are

         16  demonstrated to cause negative health effects.  So,

         17  there is your CYA from the companies themselves.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Just kind of

         19  sum up, please.

         20                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Yes, and just in

         21  summing up, I think it is incumbent upon the City

         22  Council to let Joel Klein know that even though the

         23  panel for educational policy rejected putting the

         24  cell phone towers on the schools, and he has abided

         25  by that, he has not rescinded the proposal yet.
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          2                 I think it is incumbent upon you guys

          3  to tell him he should rescind it, not only because

          4  of the hundreds, and then ultimately, thousands of

          5  parents, just by the information here, I do have

          6  studies for you. I have three studies on the effects

          7  of base stations.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Give them to

          9  the Sergeant, and he will give them to us.

         10                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Okay.  It is amazing

         11  the Department of Health could not find any, when I

         12  found three, and I am not really doing a whole big

         13  job.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you all

         15  very much.

         16                 I think we might have some questions,

         17  starting with Council member Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         19  and give our regards to the Assembly members, in

         20  fact, I do not know if you know it but while the

         21  public schools do not do it, many private schools

         22  do, right here.

         23                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  And, they also have

         24  problems with their parents, and when they are

         25  educated on the topic.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Right around

          3  the corner from my office I had a discussion with

          4  the Monsignor regarding these cell phone towers on

          5  top of his school, so, I may work with them on

          6  introducing something like this on the City level.

          7                 Evie and John, let me again thank you

          8  because without the two of you, I would not be aware

          9  of this, and I know you had to convince me in the

         10  beginning, and before I met you I thought maybe you

         11  were the kind of people that walked around with tin

         12  foil hats on, worried about radiation.  So, you did

         13  have to convince me, and you did that, and now I

         14  have to convince the Chairs of the Health and

         15  Buildings, and that was easier than you convincing

         16  me, by the way.  As I said, they understood the

         17  importance of this immediately, and then we will

         18  have to convince, they will have to convince their

         19  committee members, and the entire City Council.

         20                 But, after today, with some of the

         21  press you will get, hundreds of thousands of more

         22  people will be aware of this, and hopefully, we can

         23  make some changes for the better, and it is all

         24  because of you two sitting there.  And, I know you

         25  have missed tons of work, and being with your kids,
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          2  not just today but many days in the past to do this.

          3    So, let me give you my thanks again.

          4                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes, I am

          6  sorry, Christine.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That I will

          8  allow.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I am saying

         10  yes, and you said no, I am sorry about that.

         11                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  I just want to add

         12  that there is many more people who were involved.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That is all

         14  right.  You can always clap for civic participation.

         15                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  There are many

         16  more people who were involved besides just John and

         17  me.

         18                 MS. CAMPOS:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  We are aware

         20  of that but you were the first two that I was aware

         21  of, and actually, I do not have any questions

         22  because we have spent hours and hours together but I

         23  just wanted to thank you.  So, thanks.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you all

         25  very much.
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          2                 I appreciate very much, I know you

          3  have all been here throughout the entire hearing,

          4  and I really do appreciate you putting so much of

          5  your own time, out of your work days, and obviously,

          6  lots of times on nights and weekends, et cetera, on

          7  this issue out of your concern for your neighborhood

          8  and your families. So, thank you very much.

          9                 MR. CAMPOS:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Okay, just one

         11  thing.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sure.

         13                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  If you want copies

         14  of these couple of hundred letters, I could make

         15  them for you and submit it.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON:  Okay, that would be

         17  great.

         18                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Yes?  Okay.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  David Preston

         20  (phonetic) from the Health Committee will give you

         21  his card so you can follow up with him.

         22                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Okay, thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And in

         24  Queens, we say antennas, just so you know.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.
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          2                 Next we are going to call up Jordan

          3  Silbert (phonetic) of the Downtown Alliance, Marilyn

          4  Davenport of the Real Estate Board of New York,

          5  MarySol Rodriquez of the Partnership, Todd Hey of

          6  Dewberry- Goodkind Wireless Infrastructure Builder.This

          7  panel will be followed by James Pocchia (phonetic),

          8  Richmond Town and Clark Avenue Civic Association,

          9  Veronika Conant of Midtown, Madeline Henley

         10  (phonetic) of South Brooklyn, and Lenore Stein (sic)

         11  of 305 E. 72nd Street.

         12                 If you want to testify, and I have

         13  not read your name, please make sure you have filled

         14  out a slip at the Sergeants. I may have it, I have

         15  not read the slips.

         16                 If you would not yell, and let me

         17  finish, I could say, if you want to sign up and you

         18  have not signed a slip, you should.  If you have, I

         19  have not yet read the names of people who signed the

         20  slips.  Those were just the names of the pre-

         21  assigned panels.  So, if you have not, please do, I

         22  will read those after this panel.

         23                 Thank you, you all should start in

         24  whatever order you would like.

         25                 MR. HEY:  Good afternoon, my name is
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          2  Todd Hey, and I am a licensed professional engineer.

          3    I work for Dewberry Goodkind Incorporated, we are

          4  a subsidiary of Dewberry and Davis, out of Fairfax,

          5  Virginia.  I am based out of Parsippany, New Jersey.

          6                 I wanted to say that everyone seems

          7  to be using wireless phones for all kinds of

          8  reasons.  And, as the technology changes, which it

          9  does at a very rapid pace, it is not just our phones

         10  that are wireless.  New devices such as my

         11  Blackberry, which I have here, allows consumers to

         12  send and receive e- mails, surf the web, and talk,

         13  all at the same time, using the same wireless

         14  connection.

         15                 As wireless technology continues to

         16  change rapidly,

         17  increased consumer demand for better wireless

         18  service falls right behind.  That is one reason why

         19  it is important that New York have a robust wireless

         20  network in place to ensure that consumers benefit

         21  from all their wireless service can provide now, and

         22  in the future.

         23                 Every day millions of New Yorkers for

         24  bicycle carriers to construction crews use wireless

         25  phones, and wireless devices to keep their
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          2  businesses running smoothly.  Rest assured, that

          3  upon the conclusion of this hearing, many of us in

          4  this room today will grab our wireless phones, or

          5  data devices to make a call, check e- mail, or check

          6  in with family or friends.  Clearly, we have become

          7  attached at the hip to our wireless devices.

          8                 As a civil engineer, I rely on

          9  wireless communications facilities to add in the

         10  design, permitting, and construction of private and

         11  public sectors projects within the City, and the

         12  surrounding communities.  Those projects include the

         13  construction of roads and bridges, buildings,

         14  recreation facilities, and marine and airports.  The

         15  communications we rely on assist with communicating

         16  with our colleagues, our clients, our contractors,

         17  and of course our friends and families.

         18                 With colleagues, we are allowed to

         19  share data transmissions, and to solve real- time

         20  problems in the field, and of course, in the office.

         21                 The same holds true for our clients

         22  and contractors, which also allows them to have

         23  questions answered to needs they may have in

         24  developing their projects.

         25                 Civil engineers are also involved in
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          2  the construction of wireless facilities, as well.

          3  The objective of designing facilities is the

          4  balance, both to client and public needs.

          5  Ultimately, we share the Council's concern of

          6  ensuring the public health, safety, and welfare with

          7  the design and construction of these types of

          8  facilities.

          9                 Careful consideration with the design

         10  and construction of these facilities should be given

         11  by reviewing agencies.  However, weight should be

         12  balanced to ensure carriers are meeting the FCC

         13  mandate of ensuring seamless wireless reliable

         14  coverage, and the public good is also preserved.

         15                 Because wireless technology is

         16  changing quickly, some believe New York could fall

         17  behind many Asian and European cities in the

         18  development and utilization of beneficial wireless

         19  technologies.

         20                 Our City needs to stay on track with

         21  policies that encourage the establishment of

         22  reliable networks to keep up with, if not lead,

         23  other global centers of the world.

         24                 Let me now call upon MarySol

         25  Rodriquez of the Partnership for New York City to
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          2  add her perspective on this matter.

          3                 MS. RODRIQUEZ:  Thank you, Todd.

          4  And, thank you Chairwoman Quinn, and members of the

          5  Committee.

          6                 My name is MarySol Rodriquez, and I

          7  am the Director of City Affairs for the Partnership

          8  for New York City.

          9                 The partnership, as you know,

         10  represents the major employees of the City, and we

         11  want to add our voice to those before you who say we

         12  need greater wireless capacity in the City.

         13                 As the August 2003 blackout

         14  demonstrated, there is a vital need in our City for

         15  quick and reliable wireless service. Particularly in

         16  the boroughs outside of Manhattan.  This need is

         17  evident in the Partnership Post- Black Out Survey,

         18  which revealed that the failure of the wireless

         19  communication during the black out was one of the

         20  major problems faced by the business community

         21  during the emergencies.

         22                 Some of the areas of the City are not

         23  yet wired for cell phones, and many areas that are

         24  wired need greater capacity as more and more people

         25  rely on cell phones for their personal and
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          2  commercial communication.

          3                 Therefore, we are urging the Council

          4  not to put up roadblocks that would make it

          5  difficult to build cell phone facilities.  To remain

          6  competitive, New York City needs to expand our

          7  wireless capacity.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. HEY:  Let me now introduce New

         10  Jersey Wireless Access Coalition members, Mary

         11  Davenport of REB New York, and Jordan Silbert of the

         12  Downtown Alliance for their brief remarks.

         13                 MS. DAVENPORT:  I am Marilyn

         14  Davenport from the Real Estate Board of New York.

         15                 MR. HEY:  Sorry about that.

         16                 MS. DAVENPORT:  And, we represent

         17  over 6,500 building owners, managers, and brokers of

         18  high- rise commercial office buildings, and

         19  apartment buildings.

         20                 It is absolutely critical to our

         21  members, both commercial building owners and

         22  apartment building owners, that they be able to

         23  provide the occupants of their buildings with the

         24  broadest array of communications, services, and

         25  amenities.
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          2                 We often refer to New York City as

          3  the`world capital of finance and commerce', and the

          4  communications infrastructure is absolutely

          5  essential to our maintaining that proud label.

          6                 It is important to remember that we

          7  are not talking only about the people in the street,

          8  but people within buildings who need broad services,

          9  wireless communication services, and reliable

         10  wireless communication services.  And, I am probably

         11  not the only mother in the room with a child who has

         12  no land line in his apartment.  I can only reach him

         13  at work, or on his wireless. So, it has really

         14  become ubiquitous throughout the City.

         15                 One of the things after, both 9/11

         16  and after the blackout, we have been working with

         17  our members on emergency planning on security issues

         18  on business continuity planning. Wireless

         19  communication has become an essential part of all of

         20  that kind of planning, by all different means,

         21  whether it is cell phone, telephone trees,

         22  Blackberry pin number broadcast, so this

         23  infrastructure is absolutely essential.

         24                 Finally, wireless capability has

         25  become and will continue to be increasingly
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          2  important for first responder and public emergency

          3  response communication, and so, it is important that

          4  it be reliable throughout all five boroughs.

          5                 We support the goal of ensuring that

          6  New York City continues as a leader in wireless

          7  communication.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. SILBERT:  Hi, I am Jordan Silbert

         10  with the Alliance for Downtown New York, and we

         11  manage the Downtown Lower Manhattan Business

         12  Improvement District.

         13                 For Lower Manhattan to remain

         14  competitive as a business district in this global

         15  economy, it needs to offer companies and their

         16  employees the best and most reliable in both wired

         17  and wireless communications.

         18                 On September 11th, one of the lessons

         19  we learned is that it is imperative for people to

         20  have the ability to communicate in the event of a

         21  disaster.  We saw that land- based lines can fail,

         22  and that cell phone networks can suffer outages, due

         23  to over capacity.

         24                 In response, the Downtown Alliance,

         25  the Association for a Better New York, the Real
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          2  Estate Board of New York, and the New York Building

          3  Congress established the Lower Manhattan

          4  Telecommunications Users Working Group.  It

          5  consisted of senior telcom execs from a variety of

          6  Downtown companies, including AIG, Bank of New York,

          7  and Goldman- Sachs.  They were charged with

          8  developing a strategy for making Lower Manhattan's

          9  telecom infrastructure more reliable and more secure

         10  and more redundant.

         11                 We met with 13 different telecom

         12  carriers, and asked them what happened to their

         13  networks on September 11th, and what they were doing

         14  to upgrade the network to make sure that there were

         15  no outages in the future.

         16                 Among the findings of the group, were

         17  that things were actually very good in Lower

         18  Manhattan.  Lower Manhattan is the second most wired

         19  place on the globe, and there is a whole host of

         20  different telecommunications options.

         21                 However, further steps should be

         22  taken to improve the offerings in the business

         23  district, and thereby, lock in those advantages for

         24  years to come.

         25                 The Group found particular
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          2  opportunity with new wireless technologies.  By

          3  virtue of the fact that wireless is a different

          4  pathway, literally, the air, rather then land- based

          5  lines, whether they be copper or glass.  Wireless

          6  technologies have the ability to add a level of

          7  redundancy to land- based lines, and therefore,

          8  significantly improve the reliability of a business

          9  districts telecom system.

         10                 As business continuity and disaster

         11  preparedness are becoming a larger and larger

         12  component of businesses located, or many businesses

         13  location decisions, how reliable and how robust a

         14  business districts telecom system is can be a major

         15  selling point to companies, as they make location

         16  decisions.  For lower Manhattan to remain

         17  competitive as a business district in this global

         18  economy, it needs to offer companies and their

         19  employees the best and most reliable in both wired,

         20  and wireless communications.

         21                 As you saw, or as you heard, we are

         22  actually proposing the creation of a wireless

         23  redundancy system is Lower Manhattan.  It would be

         24  the first of its kind in any business district, and

         25  would attract businesses from all over the world to
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          2  Lower Manhattan.  We believe wireless technology

          3  needs to be supported and could be a valuable

          4  business attraction to all for Lower Manhattan.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. HEY:  In conclusion, on behalf of

          7  the New Jersey Wireless Access Coalition, in a city

          8  known for its fast- paced lifestyle, reliable

          9  wireless communications have now become a necessity.

         10                 As New Yorkers spent more of their

         11  income on wireless devices, and service plans, they

         12  expect and deserve seamless reliable coverage, no

         13  matter where they are.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. DAVENPORT:  If I can just add, we

         16  are members of the New York Wireless Access

         17  Coalition.

         18                 MR. SILBERT:  Us, too.  All of us.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         20  do not think we have any questions.

         21                 Thank you all very much.

         22                 Next we are going to hear James

         23  Pocchia, Veronika Conant, Madeline Henley, Lenore

         24  Stern, and also Francis Conant. And, the other folks

         25  that we have slips from are Joan Bondell, who would
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          2  be after this, and Peter Hudiburg.

          3                 If you are here and you want to

          4  testify, and you are not one of those folks, or the

          5  two people I said, you should go see the Sergeant-

          6  At- Arm, and sign in.  So, otherwise this should be,

          7  James, Veronika, Francis, Madeline, and Lenore.

          8                 After this panel, I will just say it

          9  again, after this panel is Joan Bondell, and Peter

         10  Hudiburg.  If you want to sign up, you should, and

         11  you have not signed up, you should do so now.

         12                 You are Veronika and Madeline I am

         13  going to assume, right?

         14                 MS. STERN:  No, Lenore.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, I am

         16  sorry.  Let me just say again who is on this panel.

         17                 James Pocchia, is he here?  Okay.

         18                 Veronika Conant and Francis Conant,

         19  they should come up.

         20                 Madeline and Lenore are here.

         21                 So, you should just note for the

         22  record, that James Pocchia from Richmond Town and

         23  Clark Civic Association, was here supporting the

         24  legislation, but had to leave.

         25                 Whoever would like to start, why
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          2  don't you go right ahead, one of the two folks who

          3  were here first, go right ahead.

          4                 MS. STERN:  Okay, I will start.  My

          5  name is Lenore Stern.  I am a shareholder in a

          6  cooperative located at 305 East 72nd Street.

          7                 My apartment, which faces the rear of

          8  the building, was purchased because it had one

          9  outstanding feature, the location. The view was of

         10  substantial value as was the quiet of the rear

         11  exposure.

         12                 I awoke one morning to find workman

         13  on the rear second floor roof, not thirty feet from

         14  my window, constructing a cellular base station for

         15  A T & T.  This agreement was made without the

         16  knowledge or consent of the property owners who face

         17  it.            Additionally, cellular access could

         18  still be utilized had this been constructed on the

         19  main roof of the seventeen story building.

         20                 The cellular base station has turned

         21  the courtyard into an industrial site.  The health

         22  concerns of having this installation so close to

         23  windows is evident.  The motor is loud and

         24  interferes with quiet enjoyment.  It carries a

         25  stigma and promotes fear, or "cancerphobia".
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          2                 The American Bar Association's

          3  meeting held on August 3, 1998 reported on "Stigmas

          4  Contamination and the Environment:  Their Influence

          5  on Property Valuation for Tax Purposes".  Microwave

          6  and cellular antennas are included in the list of

          7  stigmas.

          8                 This "stigma" is now my only view.

          9  Aesthetically, this monstrous structure has

         10  diminished the value of my apartment. My privacy has

         11  been violated by workers who maintain the

         12  installation.  Federal law does not allow local

         13  ordinances to discriminate against providers.

         14  However, there are no laws to keep providers from

         15  discriminating against residents.

         16                 I am respectfully requesting that the

         17  City pass legislation that would initiate a standard

         18  set of cell tower guidelines that includes existing

         19  towers.  Local governments must ensure that they

         20  protect residents from unsightly installations and

         21  potential health risks, while preserving property

         22  values of investors.  Base stations and antennas

         23  should be place high up, and away from people, not

         24  in their backyards or on a facade outside their

         25  windows.  Legislation cannot exclude residents with
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          2  unique existing problems.  The City of New York must

          3  protect us all.

          4                 And, if I might just add something to

          5  that, please?

          6                 I reviewed a copy of the Department

          7  of Buildings permit, as it was submitted by A T & T,

          8  Bagtell (phonetic).  To say the very least, it was

          9  misleading.  I disagree with, I am sorry I cannot

         10  remember the name of the attorney from the

         11  Department of Buildings, when she requested that

         12  prior permits not be reviewed because if this one

         13  had so many misleading and false statements, I am

         14  sure so do many of the others, and I think those

         15  that are misleading or false should, frankly, be

         16  revoked.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Perfect

         19  timing, thank you.

         20                 Whoever would like to go next, go

         21  right ahead.

         22                 MS. HENLEY:  My name is Madeline

         23  Henley, I am from Bayridge, Brooklyn.  A community

         24  predominately of one and two family attached housed,

         25  and small apartment buildings.
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          2                 This photograph is not representative

          3  of what is occurring in our neighborhood.  It seems

          4  rather similar to what is occurring in Astoria.

          5  There are six sites located within walking distance

          6  of my home.  There are contact antennas hanging

          7  over, literally, over my back yard.  I am twenty

          8  feet away from these antennas.  There are twenty

          9  children, approximately, that play in the back yards

         10  of our properties.

         11                 In one hour, yesterday, because I

         12  only found out yesterday about this meeting today,

         13  in one hour after dinner, I collected 32 signatures

         14  from people on my block, and in getting those

         15  signatures, I spent time with each of those people

         16  asking them about their concerns.  Their concerns,

         17  of course, are the aesthetics, our property values.

         18  We are not wealthy people, we are the community base

         19  of this City, that goes out and votes.  We are the

         20  fireman, the policeman, the sanitation workers, the

         21  school teachers.  All of our equity is in our home.

         22  Our residential block has now been turned into an

         23  industrial zone.              Secondly, of great

         24  importance, are the health effects.  We have

         25  children on our block playing together in the back
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          2  yards an on the stoops throughout the evening, early

          3  evening of summer.  This is constant exposure.  We

          4  cannot go into our back yards without these things

          5  in our faces.

          6                 And, the third thing, very disturbing

          7  is, where is the follow up?  My communication

          8  through my Community Board, and the Department of

          9  Buildings is this;  they are put up and they are

         10  never inspected.  It is very comforting to know,

         11  that when I rode in an elevator at 250 Broadway,

         12  that that elevator is inspected periodically.  It is

         13  comforting to know that the escalators I ride on are

         14  inspected.  It is comforting to know that DOT comes

         15  out and inspects my sidewalk, and my neighbors,

         16  owing to safety issues.

         17                 Where is the inspection of these?

         18  They are put up and they are never inspected again.

         19  Someone asked my how I could tell if something was

         20  loose.  My question to you, especially the

         21  communications people is, how can I tell if it is

         22  not?

         23                 That is all.  Thank you, and I am

         24  sorry for the tone of my voice but I am angry.

         25  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

          3  Go ahead.

          4                 MS. CONANT:  My name is Veronika

          5  Conant.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Is your mic

          7  on?  If your light is off, then you are on.

          8                 MS. CONANT:  Oh, I do not know.  It

          9  is on, yes, can you hear me?

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, good.

         11                 MS. CONANT:  My name is Veronika

         12  Conant.  I am a medical librarian, recently retired

         13  from the Health Professions Library at Hunter

         14  College, which I headed for many years.

         15                 I live at 45 West 54th Street, a 13-

         16  story high co op, in Midtown Manhattan.  I am a

         17  member of the Board of Directors. Two years ago our

         18  building wanted to generate funds by having an

         19  A T & T microcell base station installed.  When I

         20  started to read and look into the health

         21  implications of such a move I got very concerned.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Ma'am, can

         23  you bring the mic closer to your mouth because we

         24  are having a lot of trouble hearing you?

         25                 MS. CONANT:  Oh, I am sorry, yes.  Is
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          2  that better?

          3                 Okay, so, when I started to read and

          4  look into the health implications of such a move, I

          5  got very concerned.

          6                 At first, the Board voted for the

          7  contract but it was split vote.  We finally involved

          8  all the residents, who at the special meeting, voted

          9  against the contract.  A T & T, at first, threatened

         10  to sue us but since no work started yet, with the

         11  aid of an attorney, we got the contract cancelled.

         12  So this got me into the subject of cell phones and

         13  base stations and health.

         14                 I really welcome your proposals, and

         15  I believe that much are needed, and they are

         16  important and needed, and I would like to make a few

         17  comments.

         18                 Introduction 149, please reinstitute

         19  that applications for base station installation,

         20  once again, go to the Board of Standards and

         21  Appeals, and public hearings are called.  You can

         22  hear it from all of us, how much they are needed.

         23                 We need also Environmental Impact

         24  Statement giving detailed specifications about

         25  equipment, which was something we never got from A T
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          2  & T, at that time.

          3                 At present, the FCC does not check

          4  the safety of equipment installed.  We need it

          5  locally.

          6                 Also, be careful about standards,

          7  make sure equipment works within the allowed RF

          8  radiation limits.  We need radiation meters, and

          9  also control noise.  As the others have stated, I

         10  visited one of these, even though we did not have

         11  it, and the noise, it has one component the

         12  transmission equipment, which is unbelievably noisy.

         13    Also, it has another component, an air conditioner

         14  which goes outside, and that is noisy, as well.

         15                 Regarding Resolution 76, besides

         16  tower antenna newer microcell ones also are very

         17  much in existence, and that was what we were talking

         18  about.  These are attached to the outside of

         19  building, facing the street, usually between the

         20  second and third floors, not far from the ground.

         21  Cumulative effects of these can be, oops, oh dear.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you could

         23  just sum up, that would be great.

         24                 MS. CONANT:  Well, my husbands is

         25  only very brief, so, if I could a little to mine.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sum up, sum up

          3  dear.

          4                 MS. CONANT:  Well, I recommend that

          5  we have a map of all base stations in New York City.

          6    We also create a registry of health effects

          7  reported by people living there. There are lots of

          8  non- thermal effects, and there are lots of studies.

          9    There are studies which are relating to base

         10  stations and ill health, and as a librarian, I have

         11  a large collection of them.  I am offering my help

         12  to the Committee and City Council, to give you

         13  information relevant to it.  But, one thing that I

         14  do want to stress, that really concerns me.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you could

         16  just sum up.

         17                 MS. CONANT:  That base stations in

         18  residential areas is that once these have been

         19  installed, they are there 24 hours a day, seven days

         20  a week, for many, many years.

         21                 So, we have to be very careful about

         22  placing them, and long- term effects could be

         23  significant.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. CONANT:  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Sir, I tried

          3  to ask my ex wife to sum up many times before, it

          4  never worked for me either.

          5                 MR. CONANT:  My name is Francis

          6  Conant, I am representing me, however.  I am a

          7  retired Emeritus Professor of Anthropology at Hunter

          8  College, and a World War II combat veteran.        I

          9  have an implanted cardiac pacemaker, and have been

         10  warned by the maker, to avoid unnecessary exposure

         11  to emitted radio frequencies (RF) and

         12  electromagnetic fields (EMF).

         13                 I have four very brief comments, on

         14  the potential threat of both RF and EMF at the start

         15  of life, and on the years before the close of life,

         16  the "end game", so to speak, but this is not a game.

         17                 First, at the start of life animal

         18  studies have shown, positively, the effect of

         19  radiation on embryo development. Obviously, there

         20  have been no studies on human subjects.  But later

         21  in development, from the start of life through young

         22  childhood, as you were just reporting, the plates of

         23  the skull are not fully joined, and the fontanelle,

         24  an infant's "soft spot" is still open and

         25  particularly vulnerable to emitted RF and EMF.  We
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          2  do not know how vulnerable, and closing our eyes to

          3  the danger will not make it so.

          4                 Second, toward the end of life,

          5  people move more slowly.  They sit a lot, especially

          6  on folding chairs set out on the sidewalk.  Are they

          7  within the footprint cast on the ground by base

          8  station or repeater antennas on the sides of

          9  buildings, and I fear, lamp posts?  We do not know.

         10  Do they have a heart condition, even a pacemaker?

         11  We, most especially you, Members of the Housing and

         12  Health Committees, do not know.

         13                 My recommendation is that cell phone

         14  companies be required to file the specifics of their

         15  installation before a permit to install is approved,

         16  or not.  The specifics would include where sited,

         17  how high, footprint at ground level, power, maximum

         18  emissions and frequency of both receiving and

         19  transmitting through the day and night.  With such a

         20  data base then properly designed epidemiological

         21  studies can be carried out, and then we can begin to

         22  know.

         23                 Oh yes, as you said, installers

         24  should be required to periodically recalibrate their

         25  antennas, and report their findings for entry in the
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          2  data base.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you

          5  very much.  I do not think we have any questions.

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 I am going to call the final two

          8  witnesses, Joan Bondell and Peter Hudiburg.

          9                 Go right ahead.

         10                 MS. BONDELL:   My name is Joan

         11  Bondell.  I live at 350 Central Park West, and I am

         12  here today because I came out of my shower one

         13  morning in August to hear mens voices in my bedroom,

         14  and to find, without any prior notice, that Nextel

         15  was installing these, four of them, at my bedroom

         16  wall, at my window.  They are against the wall.  I

         17  have had my apartment tested for radiation, and

         18  there was radiation coming six feet into the

         19  bedroom.  My bedroom, to me, can not be used, and

         20  the apartment is frightening to me.  There was

         21  radiation also coming into living room.

         22                 The first thing that Nextel said to

         23  me, Diane Rainy (phonetic) at Nextel said, that this

         24  was necessary in case of a terrorist attack.

         25                 My landlord has said that it is his

                                                            187

          1  HEALTH AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  building, and he will do what he wants with it.

          3                 These are so close that they can be

          4  touched from when I am standing within my bedroom.

          5                 After protesting against this for

          6  seven months, and trying to get some help, two weeks

          7  ago, Nextel put another one on my bedroom wall.

          8  They took it from the window below me, and put it on

          9  my wall.  It seems that is some sort of retaliation

         10  for causing them problems.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Would you say

         12  that again, I am sorry.

         13                 MS. BONDELL:  I said it seems like it

         14  is some sort of retaliation, they put another, these

         15  are each five feet high. I have approximately, well,

         16  eight feet of cell towers on my bedroom wall.  This

         17  is a 17- story building.  I would have no problem

         18  with it being on the roof.

         19                 Nextel has also testified at

         20  Community Board 7, that they have not done this

         21  anywhere else, except on one nursing home window in

         22  New Jersey.

         23                 I feel like I am an experiment of

         24  one.  No health studies can possibly address this,

         25  if I am the only one living this way.  It is in my
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          2  home.  If there are laws about how far it has to be

          3  from the public, how can they put it on the other

          4  side of my wall when there is radiation coming, what

          5  is called`splatter' is coming over the top and the

          6  bottoms of them, and around the sides. I have the

          7  radiation report by a reputable engineer, Stewart

          8  Morra (phonetic).  When he came back, after Nextel

          9  put the other one on my wall, the radiation level

         10  was doubled.  To which, Diane Rainy at Nextel

         11  replied, "I am shocked".

         12                 I do not see how there can be a need

         13  to have this one situation, where no one else is

         14  living this way, in order for them to have their set

         15  up.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         17                 MS. BONDELL:  Can I add one thing,

         18  please?

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sure.

         20                 MS. BONDELL:  I do ask that any laws

         21  that are passed, do address something like this, as

         22  outrageous and dangerous as this, even though it

         23  happened before any legislation.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council

         25  member Vallone wanted to ask you a quick question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I just

          3  wanted to quickly ask for your permission to make

          4  some copies of some of these pictures?

          5                 MS. BONDELL:  Of course.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

          7                 MS. BONDELL:  I have others if you--.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Why don't you

          9  give those to the Sergeant, so we could take a look

         10  at them, if you do not mind?

         11                 Go right ahead, Sir.

         12                 MR. HUDIBURG:  My name is Peter

         13  Hudiburg, and I am the Coordinator from Microwave

         14  Health Alert.

         15                 In February of 2002, we conducted a

         16  survey of radiation levels at ten apartments around

         17  New York City, and some other individuals New York

         18  City.

         19                 In the apartment on 115th Street,

         20  where we found the highest levels in a couples

         21  master bedroom, we found levels that were far below

         22  FCC limits but considerably above limits advised by

         23  any number of studies, dozens of studies cited by

         24  Dr. Henry Lay (phonetic) a PhD. Research professor

         25  of bio- engineering at the University of Washington,
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          2  and a world renowned scientist, on clinical studies

          3  of the effects of microwave and high level radiation

          4  on rats, so we found that in some cases the antenna

          5  was pointed right directly at their bedroom.

          6                 So, now Saltzberg (phonetic) has a

          7  different way of approaching this problem.  They

          8  have established some very stringent standards that

          9  are thousands of times more stringent than the

         10  FCC's.  Saltzberg requires that no person be exposed

         11  to more than one- tenth of a micro- watt per square

         12  centimeter, and that should definitely be the

         13  standard for dwellings where children are living.

         14                 In Golden, Colorado people are being

         15  exposed to very strong signals from any number of

         16  different sources, TV and radio transmitters, and

         17  they find that those people have, suffered from a

         18  higher incidence of brain and central nervous system

         19  cancers.

         20                 So, in our study we found that people

         21  were exposed to levels of five micro- watts per

         22  square centimeter or less.

         23                 Dr. Bill Curry (phonetic), a retired

         24  physicist from Chicago, we brought him over here to

         25  do these measurements, and he cites studies that are
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          2  relevant to these levels, including studies

          3  indicating impaired nervous system function.  Visual

          4  reaction time in children were slowed, impaired

          5  memory function, two- fold, I would like to

          6  summarize, please.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, if you

          8  could sum up that would be great.

          9                 MR. HUDIBURG:  Two- fold increase in

         10  leukemia in adults from AM exposures, significant

         11  effects on mice immune systems, two- fold increase

         12  in leukemia in children, decrease of survival in

         13  childhood leukemia in vicinity of T V towers,

         14  irreversible infertility in mice after five

         15  generations of exposure, motor function, memory

         16  attention deficit in Latvian school children exposed

         17  to radar.

         18                 So, I have an annotated bibliography

         19  published by Henry Lay of 28 studies that are

         20  relevant to the levels that we found, plus the study

         21  conducted by Bill Curry.

         22                 Also, Whitney North Seymour

         23  (phonetic), who is an eminent lawyer, is

         24  representing the EMR Network in Washington, D.C., in

         25  a case trying to force the FCC to tighten up its
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          2  regulations.  And, I would like to present a little

          3  bit of what he had to say.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you could

          5  just submit a copy of it to the Sergeant, that would

          6  be best, and we would get it in its entirety in the

          7  record.

          8                 MR. HUDIBURG:  Well, actually, he

          9  does not have a written testimony.  He has some

         10  back- up material but no written testimony.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON:  Okay, well then he

         12  can, the hearing is going to be over today but,

         13  obviously as has been indicated, this is an on-

         14  going issue, so he can forward us whatever he would

         15  have said, and we will make sure that it is part of

         16  the record.

         17                 MR. HUDIBURG:  Also, I would like to

         18  say that--.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am sorry,

         20  Sir, you actually had like about five minutes, which

         21  is two minutes more than any of the other witnesses.

         22

         23                 So, if you could just sum up quickly,

         24  and then you are going to need to finish.

         25                 MR. HUDIBURG:  Yes, I will.
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          2                 I would like to see a public hearing

          3  structured in such a way that the citizen activists

          4  are heard from first, and the bureaucrats and the

          5  industry people are heard from last.  And, the

          6  people who would be timed, would be the bureaucrats

          7  and the industry people, and not the citizen

          8  activists.

          9                 We are the people who are bringing

         10  you information that you will not hear from any

         11  other source.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thanks, just

         13  so the record is clear, the industry folks were

         14  timed, as well.  They all got three minutes, you

         15  actually got six minutes, and it is not--.

         16                 MR. HUDIBURG:  For two people.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It is not, we

         18  do not time the Administration, but thank you for

         19  your input.

         20                 Council member Vallone, do you have

         21  any question? Okay.

         22                 Thank you all very much.

         23                 The joint hearing of Health and

         24  Housing is adjourned.

         25                 (Meeting adjourned at 2:29 p.m.)
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